THE BOOK OF OLD ONES

Scorpio

THE BOOK OF OLD ONES

Scorpio

Copyright © 2002 Finbarr International

CASH REWARD!

To the reader: If you find an unauthorised version of the enclosed text for sale; or see it advertised by anyone other than Finbarr or House of Jupiter please let us know. If we find that our copyright has been breached you will be rewarded handsomely! (Your identity will be kept secret and will not be revealed in any legal proceedings.)

WARNING!

Unauthorised reproduction of the enclosed text, in any form whatsoever, or unauthorised use of our advertising will result in criminal proceedings ... or worse!

CONTENTS

Introduction		
The Whole Secret of Magic		
Miracles Are Yours		
The Marvelous Water-Heal-Me Spell Cured Fong Y. of His Headaches		
The Dream Quest of Lovecraft		
Working This Magic is Easy		1
The Sensual You-Are-Mine Ritual Helped Paul B. Win the		1
Love of a Beautiful Girl		
This Magic is Real, not Fantasy		1
Chapter One: Secrets of the Necronomicon		1:
A Different Kind of Magic		1
The Sign of the Elder Gods		1.
The Ritual of the Old Ones		1
Physical and Emotional Sensations of Contact	i.	1
Using Magical Power to Smooth Your Path Through Life		1
Working the Ritual of the Old Ones is Simple and Effective		1
The Cult of the Old Ones		1
Creating Your Personal Necronomicon		1

Chapter Two: Spells Work Mysteriously	18	The Titillating Let-Others-Notice-Me Ritual	37
How to Cast Spells that Really Work	19	How the Byakhee Can Bring Love Into Your Life	37
Invocation of the Old Ones	19	The Wonderful Bring-Me-A-Lover Spell	38
A Fast-Working Spell for Protection	20	The Irresistible Romantic-Harmony Ritual	38
The Vital Safe-Travel Spell	20		
The Power of the Old Ones Protected Eddie G. from	21	Chapter Six: How Five People Found Romantic Happiness	39
Certain Death		The You-Are-Mine Ritual Helped Cindy H. Seduce the Man of	39
The Yog-Sothoth Ritual for Secret Knowledge	21	Her Dreams	
The Shape of Things Unknown	22	The Let-Others-Notice-Me Ritual Made Thomas T. the Center	40
Your Personal Program of Magic Working	22	_f Attention	
Let Magic Bring You the Money You Need	23	The Bring-Me-A-Lover Spell Helped Carmen C. Find Perfect Love	40
	-	The Romantic-Harmony Ritual Helped Nick C. Win Back His	41
Chapter Three: Mysterious Spells and Rituals to Bring Money	23	Girlfriend	
Using the Power of Shub-Niggurath to Receive Money	23		
The Dynamic Bring-Me-Money Spell	24	Chapter Seven: Unique Spells and Rituals to Solve Your Life	42
How the Doel Can Bring You Gold	24	Problems	
The Amazing Bring-Me-Gold Spell	25	How the Deep Ones Can Heal You	42
The Fantastic Bring-Me-Jewels Ritual	25	The Marvelous Water-Heal-Me Spell	42
The Titanic Bring-Me-Wealth Ritual	26	The Genuine Back-To-Health Ritual	43
The Incredible Bring-Me-Success Ritual	26	How the Outer Ones Can Protect You from Harm	44
The Superb Change-My-Luck Spell	27	The Forceful I-Am-Protected Spell	44
Finding Your Lucky Numbers	28	The Explosive Destroy-My-Enemies Ritual	45
Let Magic Bring Love Into Your Life	29	How You Can Receive Help from the All-Seeing Eye	45
		The Magic That Will Bring Nyarlathotep to You	46
Chapter Four: How Seven People Changed Their Lives Forever	29	The Ritual of Nyarlathotep	47
The Bring-Me-Money Spell Brought Cathy C. an Unexpected	30		
Inheritance		Chapter Eight: How Five People Solved Their Problems	47
The Bring-Me-Gold Spell Brought Anne G. a \$5,000 Prize	30	The Destroy-My-Enemies Ritual Protected David H. from a Hex	48
The Bring-Me-Jewels Ritual Brought a Witch Jewels Beyond	31	The I-Am-Protected Spell Helped Sharon K. Blast Her Enemies	49
Description		The Back-To-Health Ritual Cured James S. of Stomach Pains	50
The Bring-Me-Wealth Ritual Helped Liz D. Make Her	32	The Ritual of Nyarlathotep Helped Scott A. Achieve His Ambition	50
Husband Rich			
The Bring-Me-Success Ritual Brought Rick H. an Unexpected	32	Chapter Nine: Magical Mini-Rituals to Bring You Whatever You	52
Promotion	-	Want	
The Change-My-Luck Spell Brought Bob B. a \$50,000 Prize	33	Mini-Rituals for Every Possible Need and Desire	52
	555	Mini-Ritual to Win Contests	53
Chapter Five: Powerful Spells and Rituals for Love and Romance	34	Mini-Ritual to Bring Good Luck	53
A Magical Marriage Manual	35	Mini-Ritual to Increase Your Assets	53
The Volcanic Partner-Enslaving Ritual	35	Mini-Ritual to Banish Poverty	53
Sympathetic Love Magic	35	Mini-Ritual to Increase Physical Powers	53
The Sensual You-Are-Mine Ritual	36	Mini-Ritual to Bring a Lover	53
The Love Power of the Crescent Moon	36	Mini-Ritual to Enslave a Partner	54

Mini-Ritual for Good Health	5
Mini-Ritual to Banish Disease	5
Mini-Ritual to Relax	haba 5
Mini-Ritual for Power Over Others	_
Mini-Ritual to Overcome Opposition	5
Mini-Ritual to Make Others Obey	5
Mini-Ritual to Vanquish Enemies	5
Mini-Ritual to Change the Opinion of Others	5
Mini-Ritual to Bring Success	5
Mini-Ritual for Success in Business	5
Mini-Ritual to Pass a Test	50
Mini-Ritual to Discover Hidden Talents	50
Mini-Ritual for Self-Confidence	50
Mini-Ritual to Know the Future	5
Mini-Ritual to Find Lost Objects	5
Mini-Ritual for a New Home	5
Mini-Ritual to Cause Discord	5
Mini-Ritual to Banish Bad Luck	5
Mini-Ritual to Repulse Enemies	58
Working the Mini-Rituals is Easy	58
Chapter Ten: How Seven People Worked Magic in Their Lives	58
A Mini-Ritual Brought Don G. Success in Business	59
A Mini-Ritual Brought Unlucky Marilyn S. Romantic Happin	ess 59
A Mini-Ritual Brought Unhappy Mike W. a New Place to Live	e 60
A Mini-Ritual Took Marie G. from Rags to Riches	60
A Mini-Ritual Brought Vanessa D. a New Life to Live	61
A Mini-Ritual Lifted Ernst S. from Poverty to Opulence	62
'	02
Chapter Eleven: Let the Old Ones Bring Your Desires to You	63
The Let-Others-Notice-Me Spell Brought Josephine B. an	63
Adoring Lover	03
What Do You Need to Make You Happy?	64
The Ritual of Nyarlathotep Brought Frank O. Money and Fan	ne 64
Be Alert – Magic Always Works	65
The Deep Ones Helped Kevin N. Regain His Virility	66
How to Speak Directly to the Old Ones	67
	07

INTRODUCTION

There is a Power older than witchcraft, and greater than magic, that we can use to draw things down from unknown places, and call forth forces from outside the Spheres.

I am Scorpio, and this is the Book of my Knowledge. You will find mysteries in these pages. It is written for those seeking knowledge of older things. This is the testimony of all that I have seen, and all that I have learned, for this is the Book of the Old Ones.

The Old Ones were, the Old Ones are, and the Old Ones shall be.

In the dimly understood (by science) area of Magic, which you are about to explore, the Old Ones equate to the elemental forces of Earth, Air, Fire and Water.

In the first part of this unusual book, you are going to learn how to bring the surging powers of the Old Ones into your life. In the Pantheon of the Old Ones, there are six primary beings:

AZA THOTH: The Primal Chaos.

YOG-SOTHOTH: The All in One, and the One in All. NYARLAT OTEP: The God of a Thousand Forms.

HASTUR: The Voice of the Old Ones.

CTHULHU: The Lord of all Magic.

SHUB-NIGGURATH: The Black Goat of a Thousand Young.

The Name of Cthulhu is pronounced "Koo-Too-Loo," with the emphasis on all three syllables.

THE WHOLE SECRET OF MAGIC

The Power of the Old Ones has been used for centuries under different name. At the root of all magic and witchcraft is the Power of the Old Ones. Unfortunately, over the centuries, the basic principles of contacting the Old Ones have been elaborated into such a mish-mash of weird theories, strange ingredients and complicated ritualistic disciplines that the original concept is virtually buried in it, like the proverbial "needle in a haystack."

In this book, I have stripped away the accumulation of nonsense and gibberish that has kept the arcane wisdom of the ages from being used properly, and presented what I believe are the fundamental truths, in terms of magical practice.

It is my belief that once you bring the Old Ones into your life, opposition is overcome and problems go away. Sometimes only the simplest methods are needed to do this. A single Word of Power can be effective in some cases.

MIRACLES ARE YOURS

Yes, this magic can work miracles. I sought the intervention of the Old Ones at a time in my life when I knew only the profoundest depths of despair. Witchcraft, magic and occultism were what I sought.

I reached back through the years to study the secret lore of other worldly beliefs and superstitions, and the mysterious rites and conjuration of age-old Powers from beyond time and space.

At first, it seemed my pleas had gone unheeded. Then slowly, I became aware of something very subtle, ancient and powerful hovering in the air around me, and came to realize that all I had desired was becoming mine with little effort on my part. I had called to the Old Ones at the darkest hour of my life ... that call was now being answered.

The Marvelous Water-Heal-Me Spell Cured Fong Y. of His Headaches

Fong Y. was a successful Hong Kong businessman. He had everything in the world that he had ever wanted, except freedom from pain.

Fong had suffered from migraine headaches for as long as he could recall. He would have an attack about every ten days, and they would last from 12 to 36 hours. The only thing he could do was to go to bed until they passed.

Fong was wealthy, his many companies made money without effort on his part,

but his wealth meant nothing. He was often heard to say, "I would give every dollar I had to be free of these terrible headaches."

Fong had suffered head pain for so long, he was just about to give up all hope of ever being pain-free. He had tried everything from acupuncture to the severing of the occipital nerves in his head, but he continued to be plagued by the painful migraine headaches.

Luckily one of Fong's employees was a student of mine, and contacted me. I flew to Hong Kong and met with Fong and his wife. Together, we worked the Marvelous Water-Heal-Me Spell the first night I met with them, and he never had another migraine attack.

This true case history is an example of the amazing results that you can expect from all the Spells and Rituals in this book.

THE DREAM QUEST OF LOVECRAFT

H.P. Lovecraft, a pulp-magazine writer who died in relative obscurity at the early age of 47 in Providence, Rhode Island, in 1938, made no secret of the fact that much of the inspiration for his "stories" of the Old Ones came from the curious dreams that plagued him for most of his adult life.

In the dark abyss of sleep the Old Ones reach out to us, to give knowledge of their worship.

Of his stories, Lovecraft once wrote:

Ail my stories, unconnected as they may be, are based on the fundamental lore or legend that this world was inhabited at one time by another race who, in practicing black magic, lost their foothold and were expelled, yet live on outside ever ready to take possession of this Earth again.

These stories came to be known as "the Cthulhu Mythos". For easy reference, from now on I will refer to these stories by the term – the Mythos. Whenever you find the words "the Mythos" in the text, you will understand that this refers to the Cthulhu Mythos.

Another important ingredient of Lovecraft's "fiction", was the Necronomicon, a magical volume filled with myths and long forgotten magical formula.

Written in Damascus in the Eighth Century AD by Abdul Alhazred, the Necronomicon is mentioned more than once in connection with the Old Ones and their Callings.

In Chapter 1 you will learn how to create your own Personal Necronomicon in which to record the wonderful, life transforming effects of the magical Spells and Rituals revealed in this book.

WORKING THIS MAGIC IS EASY

The powerful, secret formulae given here are designed to allow you to magically smooth your path through life. Until you become practiced at the Art of calling the Old Ones to you, a Spell or Ritual may require more than one application before it produces a result to your satisfaction.

On average, though, the magic will work within seven days of casting a Spell or working a Ritual.

You need no special clothing, candles, magic circles, incense, herbs or any other hard to obtain occult paraphernalia, or complicated preparations to work the unique magical system in this book.

Also know that the Mini-Rituals described in Chapter 9 require you only to enter any room in your home and speak the Single Word Incantations to the four quarters. What could be simpler?

The Sensual You-Are-Mine Ritual Helped Paul B. Win the Love of a Beautiful Girl

When I first met Paul B. he was a desperate, nervous and frustrated young man. I soon discovered that much of his discontent centered on the fact that he nursed an unrequited love for the new secretary at his place of work. For several weeks he had been trying hard to become friendly with her, but because he was only a junior clerk she had been totally indifferent to him.

"I'm getting desperate," he said. "Can the Old Ones help me?" I assured him they could.

I gave him the Sensual You-Are-Mine Ritual, telling him to keep in touch.

Next time I met him, a beautiful blonde was clinging to his arm and following his every move with loving eyes. She was obviously deeply entranced by him, and that had done wonders for Paul. He was no longer the desperate and nervous young man I had spoken to less than a month earlier.

"It worked," he whispered to me while his lady was absent from the room. "I repeated the Ritual for five days, once each day. On the sixth day, she smiled at me. Next day I asked her to join me for coffee. She came along willingly, and would you believe that that previously snooty girl was gazing deep into my eyes, hanging on my every word.

"And when I asked her to come out on a date, she accepted without a murmur of opposition. I'm almost embarrassed by all the attention she gives me, but I love it!"

Paul and his lady are now happily married, and are expecting their first child.

THIS MAGIC IS REAL, NOT FANTASY

If you are serious about wanting to transform your life, I strongly suggest you to read this book through to the end.

When you have read and absorbed the contents, you will be ready to start your magic working.

Before we go further, let me dispel a misconception. There are those who would say the Old Ones do not exist. That they are a mere work of fancy; a parlor game designed to amuse the gullible.

This is not true. The Old Ones do exist and are the Real Path to the Real Meaning of the Real Truth. Call to them, and see the fantastic results.

Scorpio

CHAPTER ONE: SECRETS OF THE NECRONOMICON

The Necronomicon unlocks the gates to another dimension, to another race of beings. It tells of an ancient time when an earlier race superior to man inhabited the Earth and how, with certain rites and incantations, this race, the Old Ones, can be brought back.

The Necronomicon also relates how Cthulhu was taken by the Elder Gods, whom He had defied, and placed within a stone tower that rose above the sunken ruins of R'lyeh in the nethermost depths of the eternal sea, and sealed within by the Elder Sign. He raged against those who had imprisoned Him, and for this they descended upon Him a second time and imposed upon Him the semblance of death.

And when the stars are right Cthulhu shall be freed from R'lyeh to embrace the Earth, and make it His kingdom. And with His return shall the Old Ones defy the Elder Gods anew.

The Old Ones are grateful for our worship, for it affords them an Opening through which to come forth into this world, and in calling down an Old One a covenant is formed. He who is called must do the bidding of those who caused an Opening to be formed.

The Old Ones once walked where man now walks, but were cast out by the Elder Gods, and sealed away outside of time and space.

They are in all places and all times, ever waiting for us to speak the words that shall establish an Opening through which they, and their servitors, may be called.

In the spaces between the Spheres of Existence the Old Ones walk, sleep and wait unseen for the time when the stars are once again in their proper places. It is then that Lord Cthulhu, the sleeping God and Lord of all Magic shall awaken from His ancient slumber to reclaim the kingdom that was taken, and release those who are bound.

A DIFFERENT KIND OF MAGIC

Having introduced you to the Old Ones in true Lovecraftian style, let us now proceed to bringing their influence into the 21st century.

You may have expected that at this stage you would be told to obtain mystic robes, magic wands, bat's wings, eye of newt, and cauldrons, or to indulge in blood drinking and human sacrifice.

Such occult paraphernalia and activities are not only out of date, but also totally unnecessary to bring the Old Ones into your life.

The first step is to find a place where you can create an "opening" through which the Old Ones can be called.

The old grimoires, hand-written books of magical lore, were most specific in what they said about the art and practice of magic.

Dark forests, secluded caves, abandoned ruins, or upon the seashore beneath a full moon were considered as ideal places to work magic.

You do not have to do anything so elaborate. Some space and a few minutes of your time each day is all that is required for you to work magic. Preparations are simple, but you need to ensure silence with no interruptions. First, make a physical space to stand in without being obstructed or cluttered. That means that when you stand at the center of your cleared area, you can stretch your hands and arms out all around you.

THE SIGN OF THE ELDER GODS

The Sign of the Elder Gods (the Elder Sign) is a magical tool used by both witches and magicians to keep mischievous forces at bay. In the distant past, the Elder Sign represented man – the five points being his head, two arms, and two legs.

Inverted it became the symbol of Shub-Niggurath, the Black Goat of a Thousand Young – the five points being two horns, two ears, and the beard. Gradually, the true meaning of the Elder Sign vanished into the mists of time to be "replaced" with the Pentagram, and Baphomet – an idol with the head and feet of a goat, the breasts of a woman, and the wings of an angel.

THE RITUAL OF THE OLD ONES

Here now is a Ritual to align yourself with the magical power of the Old Ones. This requires only a few minutes of your time each day and privacy. Dress is your own individual thing when working this Ritual, but it is important that you feel comfortable.

In this way you can concentrate on what you are doing without distraction. You should work the Spells and Rituals that follow in this manner.

Stand at the center of your cleared space. Face the northern corner. The Old Ones manifest through angles and the corners of a room.

Close your eyes and take ten deep breaths. Visualize Shub-Niggurath, the Black Goat of a Thousand Young, directly in front of you.

Shub-Niggurath was worshipped by the ancient Greeks as Hecate, and by witches as the Great Earth Mother.

Shub-Niggurath should be visualized as a cloud, against a background of fertile earth, from which hoofed feet and long tendrils protrude.

In the sphere of the Elements, Shub-Niggurath is assigned to the element of Earth, and astrologically to Virgo, Capricorn and Taurus. She is a Goddess of Fertility, and all material things.

Say, (or think if you may be overheard):

"I call thee, Earth Mother, to assist me."

Remove the image from your mind.

Turn and face the eastern corner. Visualize Hastur, He who must not be named, directly in front of you.

He should be visualized as a great luminous mist, against a background of the sky.

In the sphere of the Elements, Hastur is assigned to Air, and astrologically to Gemini, Aquarius and Libra. He has influence over protection and offence, revenge and destruction.

Say aloud, (or in your head):

"I call thee, He who cannot be Named, to assist me."

Remove the image from your mind.

Turn and face the southern corner. Visualize Yog-Sothoth, the All in One and One in All, directly in front of you.

He should be visualized as a mass of iridescent spheres floating above a fiery, volcanic landscape. In the sphere of the Elements, Yog-Sothoth is assigned to Fire, and astrologically to Aries, Leo and Sagittarius. He has influence over prophecy and secret knowledge.

Say (or think):

"I call thee, Keeper of the Gate, to assist me."

Remove the image from your mind.

Turn and face the western corner. Visualize Cthulhu, Lord of All Magic, directly in front of you.

Lord Cthulhu should be visualized as an octopus-headed humanoid, against a background of the sea, with batlike wings and claws. In the sphere of the Elements, He is assigned to Water, and astrologically to Pisces, Scorpio and Cancer. Lord Cthulhu has power over spirits, magic, ghosts, emotion, and all the occult powers. Quietly say (or think):

"I call thee, Lord of Magic, to assist me."

Remove the image from your mind and face North again. Recite the following Invocation aloud slowly, with feeling:

"In front of me is Earth Energy; behind me is Fire Energy; on my right side is Air Energy; and on my left side is Water Energy. These hands, this mind and this body shall be a channel through which these Energies can flow."

Now stand quietly for about two minutes, letting your mind wander as it will, and then open your eyes.

For easy reference, think of the point where you open your eyes again as "the Calling" in the ritual. I shall be referring to the Calling later in this book.

The instructions will say: "Carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones to the Calling" and this tells you that you should prepare for the Ritual and say the words as explained from the initial instructions up to this point.

From this point in the Ritual you always begin to cast a Spell or other piece of magical working. You will find many different Spells and Rituals in these pages, they cover every possible need and desire.

Your initial tasks are behind you, and they get no more difficult as you tread further along the path to the Old Ones' embrace.

Unlike ordinary Magic, there are no white or black magical workings to be found here. The Old Ones exist beyond our concept of good and evil. The principles, invocations, incantations, spells and rituals of this magical system can be learned, mastered and used by anyone willing to make the effort and, under the correct conditions, works every time without fail.

Note: If your doctor advises you that deep breathing is dangerous for you, or if at any time during this magical working you become dizzy or see spots before your eyes, do not continue.

PHYSICAL AND EMOTIONAL SENSATIONS OF CONTACT

Here you should know about different sensations that often accompany the calling of the Old Ones. I mention it because you may be worried by it until you are told it is perfectly normal.

You may feel a tingling throughout your body. A strong itching or tickling may begin in your forehead, well below the skin. These are all signs that your call to the Old Ones is being answered.

Before you have been doing it for a full week, you may become aware of unseen forces following you as you go about your daily affairs.

You may also find that certain hitherto suppressed desires and impulses that you have, come rushing to the surface during these initial stages of contact.

These feelings and desires are the Old Ones freeing you from the chains of servitude imposed upon you by misguided beliefs in Right and Wrong. You should, if you are confident that such action will not involve you in legal entanglements, give free reign to those desires and impulses.

You can be confident that anything and everything that happens to you during and after the Ritual are to your benefit.

USING THE POWER OF THE OLD ONES TO MAGICALLY SMOOTH YOUR PATH THROUGH LIFE

If you have diligently studied and practiced the Ritual of the Old Ones, and understand the elemental and astrological associations, you are ready to assimilate this arcane knowledge into a powerful magical working.

This advanced work is suitable only if you have developed a harmonic relationship with the elemental forces of the Old Ones, if you have succeeded in calling forth Those Outside.

Enter your cleared space and work the whole of the Ritual of the Old Ones.

Next, face either the northern, southern, eastern or western corner of the room. The direction that you face will depend on your desire. Take three deep breaths, and as you finish taking the three breaths visualize the Old One appropriate to your desire directly in front of you.

See it as clearly as you can. Imagine you are bathed in its Power. Try and actually feel this Power circulating within you, at this point you must get involved. Take a mental trip and show the Old One in pictures, words and gestures what must be accomplished.

Once the ritual intention has been completed, say a simple "thank you" to the Old One and go about your daily affairs.

Repeat daily until the Ritual draws your desire to you.

WORKING THE RITUAL OF THE OLD ONES IS SIMPLE AND EFFECTIVE

That didn't hurt a bit, did it? Naturally, the printed page can give you little idea of the powerful forces called forth from unknown places during the Ritual of the Old Ones. Certainly, as you become more adept at performing the Ritual and working with the Old Ones, you will feel their awesome powers flowing through you. And you may actually begin to see the Old Ones you have called down from between the Spheres, as flashes of light and spheres of iridescent colors.

As previously suggested, to build up the Power you should work the Ritual once a day. More often than that is undesirable. The calling of the Old Ones should not be taken lightly, or for granted.

Also you will bring much quicker results if you work to achieve only one particular desire at a time. When it has come to pass, you can then move on to another one.

By now you will no doubt have decided what area of your life you wish to change. Read the various Spells and Rituals in the following pages, and decide which one you will use to bring money, love and power rushing to you.

THE CULT OF THE OLD ONES

Whatever you are trying to accomplish, you know that the job will get done much more easily and efficiently if you can call for assistance.

If you can find others of like mind to join you in your magical workings, you can greatly increase your chances of success.

The more who worship the Old Ones, the greater the Power invoked.

Keep quiet about the cult's activities and the benefits that are coming to its members. You will find that most people outside of the cult will be scared out of their wits by it. You'll be glad you kept quiet.

CREATING YOUR PERSONAL NECRONOMICON

You have read of the Necronomicon, the ancient hand-written tome containing the magic spells, chants, incantations and other magical lore of the Old Ones. The legend of this highly sought after book survives to this day.

You are going to write your own Necronomicon to assist you in all your magical ventures. Your Personal Necronomicon will be of great benefit to you in the future.

Any notebook will serve for your Personal Necronomicon, although you may wish to purchase something more ornate for this important occult tool.

Your first entries in your Necronomicon will consist of brief records of your

desires, the magical formulae used to obtain them, what happened during your magical workings, and any feelings or sensations experienced during the Ritual of the Old Ones.

Your Personal Necronomicon is secret. No one else should see it or read it without your permission. It is your own private record of your contact with the Old Ones and you should keep it locked away from prying eyes.

CHAPTER TWO: SPELLS WORK MYSTERIOUSLY

Athens, Greece in the summer of 1967 was filled with mostly American tourists on guided tours of the Parthenon and the Old City and the Temple of Zeus. The tour guides were careful not to expose their groups to the uglier side of Athens, the Mediterranean slums and the unfortunates who call the slums home.

Mira P. was one of those people. She had not always lived in the Piraeus waterfront district. An early marriage to Stavros, a young and devoted husband, had brought her a brief moment of happiness. Then her husband had been killed in a car accident. With no money and no family to turn to, she had tried working as a typist after her husband's death, both for the small salary and to forget the tragic memory of the only happiness she had ever known. Failing as a typist, she had worked briefly in a shop, then drifted to the waterfront area. Her associates there were as downtrodden and despairing as she was.

Attractive, in a plain sort of way, with green eyes filled with a beauty born of mystery, Mira soon found that she could make life a little easier by inviting the men of the sailor's section back to her squalid apartment. The men made small demands, and respected her in a curious kind of way.

Still, each day seemed as gray and colorless as the preceding ones, and Mira had taken to praying each night to Hecate (the name by which Shub-Niggurath was known to the ancient Greeks) for a way to find riches, peace and happiness. She would throw her heart and soul into each recitation – gave it all she had.

Then, one rainy day, a thin, fair-skinned young man with blond hair, whose eyes were hidden behind dark glasses, approached her. Mira thought it strange that he would wear dark glasses on such a gloomy, overcast day.

Without a word, the mysterious young man pushed a paper into her hand, telling her that she would be freed from her misery by following the instructions written on it.

When Mira arrived home she read the paper. It told how to cast a Gold-Creating Spell.

She didn't expect anything to happen, but she was so desperate and willing to try

anything to change her way of life, she followed the instructions as well as she could.

And she felt better. As she stood there calling on the Ancient Powers she thought the sun had managed to pierce the gloom and was shining.

Next day, Mira was shopping for a cheap coat at a local flea market. As she held up a drab gray jacket, she noticed a slight bulge in the pocket.

She felt somewhat disappointed when, in digging through the pocket, all she unearthed was a few old coins. Her disappointment changed to elation, however, when she showed the coins to a collector. The old coins, she learned, dated from 43 BC. Mira sold the coins to the collector for more money than she had ever considered in her most fevered imagination.

There was no looking back now. She invested some of the money in a public relations firm that promoted Greece and the Islands. It boomed, and she sold out a few years later for a six-figure sum.

Mira moved to a luxurious villa near the Gulf of Corinth, but she still remembered how things used to be before the mysterious stranger handed her the Gold-Creating Spell.

That Spell (slightly modified) is in this book, for you to use just as Mira did. I don't know how much money Mira is worth now, but if you use the Spell properly, I have no doubt that you, too, will receive all of the success and material wealth you desire.

HOW TO CAST SPELLS THAT REALLY WORK

You must know exactly what you want before you apply the powerful magic described here. There is no need for you to know how your desires will be granted (let the Old Ones take care of that), but you must have a clear idea of what you wish to accomplish. Once you decide what you want, glance through the Spells and Rituals that follow.

Somewhere within those Spells and Rituals is a Word of Power, Secret Name or phrase with which you will feel a strange affinity, use that Spell or Ritual to obtain your desires.

INVOCATION OF THE OLD ONES

Your first task, before calling the Old Ones down from unknown places beyond the Spheres, is to set the tone for the magic working to come. You do it simply and easily with the following invocation. It should be recited immediately before working any Spell or Ritual to insure success.

Let Him who is sleeping, Be woken. Let those who are bound, Be freed.

You have begun. The Old Ones are already stirring, and you are about to bring whatever you want into your life – money, love, health ... anything – easily, invisibly and quickly. You are going to name it, and it shall be so. The only other thing you need to know is that once you have cast a Spell, or worked a Ritual, you must dismiss it from your mind until you are ready to repeat it.

A FAST-WORKING SPELL FOR PROTECTION

This quick and easy Spell can be used at any time danger threatens. It invariably reduces the danger and can change an impending fatality to a less calamitous outcome, or even avert the danger altogether. When danger threatens, surround yourself with the powerful protective forces of Lord Cthulhu by saying (or thinking) three times:

"Cthulhu R'lyeh."

The second word of the invocation is easy to say. The sound of the word rhymes with "Well, yeah."

You are now well protected from harm of any kind.

THE VITAL SAFE-TRAVEL SPELL

This is another simple Spell that brings the powerful protective forces of the Old Ones to you.

To ensure a safe journey by land, say (or think) three times:

"Shub-Niggurath, protect me."

For safe travel by air, say (or think) three times:

"Hastur, protect me."

For safe travel by water, say (or think) three times:

"Lord Cthulhu, protect me."

If, while invoking this protection, you are holding your travel documents, you will reinforce the power of the Spell.

These fast-acting Spells can bring you instant protection whenever you need it.

Practice them every chance you get to set the tone for more detailed application of the Power.

Eddie G. of the Philippines owes his life to the Vital Safe-Travel Spell.

The Power of the Old Ones Protected Eddie G. from Certain Death

Eddie G. had long had an ominous premonition that one-day there would be a terrible eruption of the volcano near the East Philippines village where he lived. He didn't know why he felt there would be an eruption; the volcano had lain dormant for as long as he could remember. The exact date of the eruption he did not know, yet he knew it would be a major disaster.

He wrote something of his fears to one of his many relatives, Cousin Rick, who lived over five hundred miles away. He was surprised one day to receive a letter from his cousin. Rick had been a student of mine and urged Eddie to use the Safe Travel Spell above. Rick theorized that a Spell designed to ensure safe travel by land should also, theoretically, provide protection from any land based natural disaster.

Eddie was a very religious individual, so Rick changed the words of the Spell just enough so as not to frighten his cousin. The "prayer" Rick sent Eddie read:

"O Great Earth Mother, protect me."

The day after Eddie recited his "prayer", he wrote to his cousin later, an "angel's voice" in his ear told him to take his family to the home of a family friend in another village some miles away. This he did.

Less than a week later, the volcano erupted violently. Eddie and his family returned, unscathed, to their village to find devastation lay all around.

THE YOG-SOTHOTH RITUAL FOR SECRET KNOWLEDGE

As you are now aware, the Old Ones exist between the Spheres of consciousness, waiting to answer your call. You will soon learn other secret Spells and Rituals to bring the Power of the Old Ones to bear on your desires, but in the meantime you can know the unknown by using the occult power of dreams.

It is in our dreams that Yog-Sothoth reveals images of things unknown.

Yog-Sothoth is the gate through which the Old Ones shall return. He knows where the Old Ones once walked, and where they shall walk again. All things are known to Yog-Sothoth. Past, present and future are all one to Yog-Sothoth.

Floating within Yog-Sothoth is a vast pool of secret knowledge and useful information that you can draw on through the magic of this Ritual.

Tonight, as you slip off into sleep, imagine a bubbling mass of iridescent spheres floating in the air above you, and say three times:

"Yog-Sothoth, let me know the unknown."

Keep a notebook and pencil beside your bed and, if you wake in the night, think about what you have been dreaming and make a quick note as to what you can remember about your dreams.

You will find that information, which may aid you in improving your life, will become familiar to you in your dreams. Use the knowledge to your own advantage.

After working the Ritual, listen for and obey all hunches and intuitions that reach you the next day: that will be Yog-Sothoth offering you the clearest way to obtaining your desires.

THE SHAPE OF THINGS UNKNOWN

Perhaps it was Yog-Sothoth who caused me to dream of exceedingly strange things.

I had never had such curious dreams.

I dreamed of strange creatures, red-eyed and darkly furred; of the stars changing position; of acolytes, ancient and strangely garbed.

And I dreamed of Lord Cthulhu awakening from His ancient slumber.

All this and more did I dream in Yog-Sothoth's embrace.

YOUR PERSONAL PROGRAM OF MAGIC WORKING

The Old Ones work to your advantage, for such is the covenant, and for you alone. If you chance to perform a Spell or Ritual incorrectly, you will still see happy results, and you will never come to harm. Be sure of that. But, whenever possible, attend to as many details as you can in a magical working, and thus enhance your certainty of getting what you want as quickly and easily as you wish.

The Old Ones, who know what you need almost before you ask, will have read your intention and ignore the slip on your part, and very likely your desire would be fulfilled in due course. If it did not, you would naturally examine the magical working, and realize that you had done something to offend the Old Ones.

Y u have many Spells and Rituals to choose from in this book. The Spells and Ritual are carefully detailed. All the secrets of magic are revealed. All are equally

effective for their purposes, but you need never worry if you are unable to choose which one will achieve what you desire.

If you are in doubt at any time what Spell or Ritual to use for the best results, work the Ritual of the Old Ones and ask Lord Cthulhu. He will give you the answer you need.

LET MAGIC BRING YOU MONEY WHEN YOU NEED

In Chapter 1, you learned that the Old Ones can be called forth through the study and practice of the Ritual of the Old Ones. But there is more, much more. Solving your money problems through the use of Magic Spells and Rituals is just one more amazing secret that is revealed to you in the pages of this remarkable book.

CHAPTER THREE: MYSTERIOUS SPELLS AND RITUALS TO BRING MONEY

The Spells and Rituals given here are designed to bring you the money you need, and are easy to apply. I will not weigh you down with a long philosophical meandering of how and why a seemingly illogical combination of words, thoughts and actions can bring money flowing to you; I will tell you, though, that I know several people who use these Spells and Rituals regularly and enough money comes to them to settle their needs.

Anyone can use these secrets to bring money sufficient for every need – twenty or thirty dollars, one thousand dollars, or perhaps even ten thousand dollars. It all depends on how much you need to get through the day.

Those secrets are here, in this chapter, for you to use to take yourself onward and upward to bigger and better things, where no desire is too great.

USING THE POWER OF SHUB-NIGGURATH TO RECEIVE MONEY

Shub-Niggurath is the Great Earth Mother and governs all material needs and desires. Before you begin to draw money to you, go outside and pick up a pinch of earth and take it inside with you. Enter your cleared space. Face north, and eprinkle the soil on the floor in front of you. That small and simple gesture forges

a bond between you and Shub-Niggurath, and adds power to any Spell invoking Her aid.

THE DYNAMIC BRING-ME-MONEY SPELL

This Spell has proven extremely successful. It is concerned with bringing moderate amounts of money to meet financial needs.

As soon as possible after waking in the morning, write down on a piece of paper what bills need paying or what you need the money for.

When you have written down your need, draw a triangle around the statement. At the bottom left-hand corner of the triangle write "Ku", at the top write "Tu", and at the bottom right-hand corner write "Lu."

Keep that paper in your purse or pocket for at least 9 hours. Read it as often as you can during the day, when you are alone and unobserved.

After darkness has fallen, enter your cleared space and carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling.

If you wish you can light a single green candle, and burn a stick of incense and have soft music playing. Put out all lights except the candle and read your piece of paper once more.

Then say:

"Shub-Niggurath
Shub-Niggurath
Shub-Niggurath
In the Name of Thy Brother
Lord Cthulhu
I request you bring the needed money.
Be it so."

Repeat for six consecutive days, or until the money arrives, or until you are stopped from casting the Spell, whichever happens first. If proper results are not obtained, repeat again daily for six days, or until the Spell has become sufficiently powerful to draw the money to you.

At the end of the six days, tear the paper into tiny pieces and throw them away.

HOW THE DOEL CAN BRING YOU GOLD

The Mythos refers to the Doel as the elemental spirits of the earth and servitors of Shub-Niggurath. They have the general appearance of gigantic white worms, but despite their appearance the Doel are benevolent in nature. The Doel are the

guardians of buried treasure, and inhabit the darkest depths of mines. Their essence can be found in the earth, wood and metals. This Spell will help you to enlist their aid in your affairs.

THE AMAZING BRING-ME-GOLD SPELL

After darkness has fallen, carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Then say:

"By the Power of Lord Cthulhu,
And by the Name of He who cannot be
Named, I call forth the servitors of
Shub-Niggurath, the Earth Goddess.
Come forth from the caverns of the earth,
Come forth from the dark forests
To give kn wledge of how I may acquire gold!
Come forth! Come forth! Come forth!"

Repeat the Invocation until you have said it three times in all, then sit still for a few minutes letting your mind wander, as it will. Stand up and wait for things to happen.

Repeat this Spell each evening for six days or until your wish is granted, whichever is sooner.

THE FANTASTIC BRING-ME-JEWELS RITUAL

This Ritual is designed to bring jewels, and gifts of jewels, to you from others. Carry out the ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling, and recite the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call. Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to find jewels beyond description."

Word of Power: YANO.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your luck has changed for the better, whichever is sooner.

THE TITANIC BRING-ME-WEALTH RITUAL

If you wish to increase existing money, use this Ritual. It is designed to multiply your existing assets. Och is a Genius of Gold who can bring wealth to you, rather than jewels and gifts.

Carry out the ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling, and recite the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call. Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be blessed with enough material wealth to last me the rest of my days'

Word of Power: OCH.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your desire is granted, whichever is sooner.

THE INCREDIBLE BRING-ME-SUCCESS RITUAL

Carry out the ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling, and recite the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call. Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be carried forward to the pinnacle

of success."

Word of Pover: ZORAMI.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, G've Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your desire is granted, whichever is sooner.

THE SUPERB BRING-ME-LUCK SPELL

This simple Spell has proven successful for hundreds of users. It is designed to turn luck vibrations your way in contests where numbers are the chief factor in winning.

As soon as possible after waking in the morning, write down on a piece of paper how many lucky numbers you need to win the contest you are about to enter.

Keep it simple - write something like: "I need six numbers to win the Soccer Pools" or "I need seven numbers to win Keno." Be specific.

When you have written down your need, draw a triangle around the statement. At the bottom left-hand comer of the triangle write "Ku", at the top write "Tu", and at the bottom right-hand corner write "Lu."

Keep that paper in your purse or pocket for at least 9 hours. Read it as often as you can during the day, when you are alone and unobserved.

After darkness has fallen, carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Then say.

In the Power of the Words ROKES PILATUS ZOTOAS I direct the invisible servitors of Shub-Niggurath to shape the future such, That lucky numbers shall be revealed to me During both waking and sleeping. I seal this Calling with the Words TULITAS ZATANITOS. Be it so.

If there is any likelihood that anyone will overhear you, just say the Calling in your mind.

Repeat the Calling until you have said it three times in all, then tear your paper into tiny pieces and throw them away in running water.

Repeat this Spell each night for six days or until the lucky numbers are revealed to you, whichever is sooner.

FINDING YOUR LUCKY NUMBERS

If your lucky numbers come to you hidden in names or words, you need to do a little work before you can use them to bring good luck. The results will amply repay your effort.

First you need to know the numerological value of each letter:

You're almost ready to use your lucky numbers to win at games of chance, but let's first take a look at an example of finding lucky numbers, in case you need guidance.

For example, let us suppose you are out walking, having first cast the Superb Bring-Me-Luck Spell, and you pass a piece of paper on the ground. You continue to walk on for a couple of steps, but you can't shake the feeling you should go back and read what is written on the paper.

You do this, and find it contains a list of names and addresses of people you don't know.

To discover the lucky numbers associated with these people, you would convert them to numerical values:

John Smith	Mary Jane
1685 14928	4197 1155
(20) (24)	(21) (12)
Park Drive	Court Ave
7192 49945	36392 145
(19) (31)	(23) (10)
Johnstown	Central City
168512655	3552913 3927
(39)	(28) (21)

John Smith's lucky numbers are:

20, 24, 19, 31 and 39.

Mary Jane's lucky numbers are:

21, 12, 23, 10, 28 and 21.

These are the lucky numbers you would use when placing your entry in any game of chance where the selecting of numbers is the chief factor in winning. On average, numbers found in this way usually radiate lucky vibrations for seven days from the day they were found.

LET MAGIC BRING LOVE INTO YOUR LIFE

In this chapter you have seen how to use simple Spells and Rituals to bring you money and possessions. Perhaps your desires are for less material things.

Producing an abstract benefit, one you cannot see or touch, is done in much the same way. In Chapter 5 you will see how the Power of the Old Ones can help you in gaining the love of a partner.

CHAPTER FOUR: HOW SEVEN PEOPLE CHANGED THEIR LIVES FOREVER

Young Justin O. was a self-confessed "computer nerd." All his money went into the latest computer technology – bigger and better hard drives, surround sound speakers, cable internet connection, and faster processors. He would frequently not pay his bills in order to put the money toward some new piece of computer hardware. Consequently when his creditors suddenly informed him they were in the process of taking legal action against him, Justin had no funds in reserve to cover the backlog of bills that had accumulated.

The only solution he knew was to increase his income – either a better-paying job, or a pay rise in his present one. The latter seemed highly unlikely since Justin worked only part-time for a leading charity. It was a good job, but it didn't pay enough.

One night, in the midst of his dilemma, Justin sat down in front of his beloved computer to take his mind off his problems. Surfing the Net did not particularly hold his attention that night, until he chanced upon a website dedicated to the lore of the Old Ones. It contained a few clues on how to call Lord Cthulhu, and work magic. Avidly he absorbed all that it said.

It wasn't long before Justin felt ready to use the magical power of the Old Ones for his situation. Later that night he got a phone call. It was an old friend, whom Justin had not heard from in months.

"It was the damnedest thing," said his friend. "I was watching TV just now, when all of a sudden I got this urge to call you. So how's things?"

Justin explained his situation.

His friend told him of an opening at the electronics firm where he (the friend) worked. The job was a good one and the pay was better – a lot better!

The next morning Justin went after the job at the electronics firm. There were several other people there for the interview, but on the strength of his friend's recommendation, Justin got the job!

Remember that Justin had only a few minor secrets of the Old Ones. Yet, he worked himself a personal miracle. You can do what Justin did, and more.

The Bring-Me-Money Spell Brought Cathy C. an Unexpected Inheritance

When I first met Cathy C. in Cebu City, Philippines, she was hungry and destitute. Her home was a tin shack in a suburb of that fantastic city, near the SM Shopping Center where the more affluent citizens of Cebu go to shop. She was totally broke, without a single *peso* to her name, and she asked me for a handout when I first encountered her on Jones Avenue. Ironically, we were standing opposite the uptown branch of the Philippine National Bank.

I gave her the price of a meal, and explained a little about magic and the Old Ones as we walked to a nearby fast food outlet. At first she was a little scared, thinking that the Devil or his demons were involved. When I assured her that the Old Ones were beyond our understanding of good and evil, she seemed to relax. As we sat eating a hamburger with the works, the most food she had eaten in weeks, I explained the Ritual of the Old Ones and the Bring-Me-Money Spell to her.

A few days later, Cathy contacted me at the hotel where I was staying and asked me if I would like to join her for a cup of coffee. It seemed that she had found some temporary work for two weeks in a laundry, and wanted to repay the money I had given her.

One thing led to another and, since my advice had definitely helped her to improve her financial situation, Cathy promised to keep practicing the Ritual and using the Spell to bring a steady flow of cash into her life.

Two months later, I received a phone call from a very excited Cathy. She had received a letter from a law firm in Manila.

The letter mentioned the will of her late uncle. She had known that he had died; that had been nearly a year ago. What she hadn't known was that he had died a wealthy man. His estate had finally been settled and the money divided up among his many nephews and nieces. Cathy was to receive P40,000 (\$10,000).

The Bring-Me-Gold Spell Brought Anne G. a \$5,000 Prize

Many of us dream about what we would do if we found a pot of gold. Anne G., a widow from Florida, also had that dream, but for her it came true.

She was about to be evicted by her landlord, from the home she had shared with her husband, for nonpayment of rent. She was desperate. What could she do? She liked to play the Scratch Lottery, but was a steady loser. Inwardly she doubted anything could save her.

One day, quite by chance, she sat at the same table with me, in a cafeteria, having a coffee.

We fell into conversation and when she found out I was studying and researching

magic, voodoo, witchcraft, and the like, she wanted to know more. She explained her situation to me, and I suggested she try the Bring-Me-Gold spell.

Anne promised she would give it a try.

That night she cleared a space in her bedroom, and recited the Spell from the piece of paper I had written it on. When nothing happened, she thought, "Well it serves me right."

A short time later, however, she dreamt she was climbing up a steep hill to an abandoned house. In this dream, she carefully examined the walls in the places where the plaster had fallen off, and found gold. The walls of the dream house were made of solid gold!

Next morning, Anne remembered her dream and searched through all of the Scratch Lottery tickets on sale at the local lotteries outlet, until she found one with the word "gold" in its name. She spent one of her hard-earned dollars on a ticket, and hurried home.

For the next few minutes she felt guilty that she had spent the dollar, thinking it silly to believe the dream had meant anything. Imagine her surprise when, after carefully scratching the ticket, she won \$5,000! The money took care of the back rent and gave her a nice little nest egg as well.

The Bring-Me-Jewels Ritual Brought a Witch Jewels Beyond Description

I once knew a witch. A sweet young lady and as fine a person as you will ever want to meet. But she stubbornly insisted that the whole idea of the Old Ones was a lot of nonsense.

She could not accept that the forces invoked by witchcraft were the same as those conjured by magic. I pointed out to her that many investigators of paranormal activity have actually suggested that all occult phenomena may share a common origin.

She jokingly replied that if the Old Ones did exist, they ought to be able to bring her jewels and gifts from out of thin air.

I accepted her challenge and told her to work the Ritual of the Old Ones with the Fantastic Bring-Me-Jewels Ritual.

This she did, in front of a simple altar she had set up in a corner of her bedroom, while I watched.

Then she stood up and looked around at me, smiling, as if to say, "I told you so. Look, there's nothing on the altar." I told her to be patient and give the Ritual time to work.

That afternoon, as we took a leisurely stroll through a local park, she found a small silver ring on the ground. Her jaw dropped open, and I almost laughed.

"It's ... it's a ring," she stammered. "Somebody must have dropped it." We asked around, but no one else in the park claimed it. So it was hers to keep. The Ritual was working.

A few days later, she came to my home, and sat down. "I've got something to

tell you," she said. It seems the day after she worked the Ritual, her boyfriend surprised her with a pair of gold earrings.

The next day she got some gifts in the mail, a pearl necklace and two silver bracelets, from her mom.

"And I thought," she said. "Hey, the Old Ones really do exist!"

The Bring-Me-Wealth Ritual Helped Liz D. Help Her Husband Make a Killing on the Stock Market

Walter D. was a low-paid factory worker. The one thing he wanted, more than anything else, was a house of his own. He and his wife Liz, and their two young children lived in a small third-floor apartment in the wrong end of town.

Walter worked hard and he worked long hours, but somehow, it seemed he was never able to save enough for a down payment on a home of his own, as much as he would love one. Day-by-day Liz watched her husband drive himself relentlessly on.

Deep, dark circles surrounded his eyes and he moved like a man 30 years older. Listless, tired, he barely had enough energy to drag himself to work every morning.

Things were beginning to look desperate, when a friend suggested Walter should take any spare money and invest it. But which stocks to invest in?

Liz had been practicing magic and witchcraft for several months. She had been one of my students and found the lessons helped her. However, she had never attempted to use magic for any major situation. Now, it seemed, was an opportune time to begin. I suggested she use the Titanic Bring-Me-Wealth Ritual. Liz agreed, and put her whole heart and soul into it.

On the third night of working the Ritual, Liz dreamt she was sitting in the plush offices of a Wall Street stockbroker. In her dream, the broker showed her a short list of companies that were about to "make it big." One company, in particular, a recently formed Internet company seemed to stand out from the rest.

Next morning, Liz told her husband about the dream. He really didn't believe in the prophetic power of the dream, but was willing to grasp at any straw. The stocks were selling for just \$1 a share, and Walter scraped together enough money to buy 1,000 shares.

Imagine his surprise when, after a few months, his stocks began to soar. With his new-found wealth, Walter was able to invest in a wide variety of interests ... and, finally, was able to move his family into one of the best houses in town, and give them all the luxuries he had never been able to get them before.

The Bring-Me-Success Ritual Brought Rick H. an Unexpected Promotion

Rick H., a friendly young man of 22, is a happy man today. He was one of my students from Cebu City, Philippines. He used the Power of the Old Ones to get an unexpected promotion the first time he called to them.

Rick worked as a computer technician for one of Cebu's biggest Internet Service Providers.

It was a good job, but to Rick's mind, it didn't pay enough. He had recently left his parent's home in Cervantes Escalante to work in the city, and he was feeling the strain. He would often go without food in order to pay his bills.

The only solution he knew was to get a better paying job, or promotion in his present one. He was loath to seek another job, similar positions in other companies were hard to come by, and he enjoyed working for his current employer. A promotion seemed unlikely; he had only been with the firm for three months.

One day, during our regular chat session, Rick asked me if there was a way out of his dilemma. I told him that he could easily influence the situation with the Incredible Bring-Me-Success Ritual. In Rick's dejected state, it didn't take me long to convince him that he should at least give it a try. He did.

Imagine his surprise when, within three days, he received a phone call from the firm's Head Office in Manila. It seems Rick's immediate supervisor was to be given the sack due to his fiddling with the firm's funds. Although Rick had only been with the firm for a few months, it was felt that, on the recommendation of his branch manager, he was the right man for the job. Naturally, a substantial increase in pay went with the job.

The Bring-Me-Luck Spell Brought Bob B. a \$50,000 Prize

Bob B. from Perth, Western Australia, would be the first to admit that he was just an average guy for whom money was always a problem, and life was a constant struggle to keep pace with the rising cost of living.

One day, quite by chance, one of Bob's work colleagues mentioned the research I was conducting into the magical power of Spells and Rituals. The colleague was an old student of mine.

"Try it," said his colleague. "There is one, to discover lucky numbers, that is absolutely perfect for you."

Bob worked the Ritual of the Old Ones with the Titanic Bring-Me-Luck Spell. That night he had a very clear dream about filling in lottery coupons.

In his dream some of the numbers printed on the coupon glowed like small neon signs.

When he awoke he remembered his dream and told his wife about it. She laughed and handed him a lottery coupon – they always kept plenty on hand – and told him to go ahead and fill in his "dream numbers."

"You can't do any worse than you usually do," she laughed.

As Bob looked at the coupon, the numbers didn't glow, but the numbers he had dreamed of drew his eyes to them, like a magnet. There were six of them.

He marked them on the coupon and his wife laughed again when he took a dollar from his pocket, walked to the local lottery outlet, and placed his single entry in that week's draw.

On the night of the weekly draw, his wife turned on the TV to get the lottery results. As the program's host called the numbers, she checked Bob's ticket.

The first number drawn matched his entry ... and the second ... the first three ... a minute later he had all six winning numbers.

His wife leaped in the air with a yell.

"I don't believe it," she shouted. "How did you do it?"

Bob was dumbfounded. He couldn't really believe he had dreamed the winning numbers – yet he had.

Bob's share of the first division prize was \$50,000. At long last all his troubles are over, and money is no longer a problem.

CHAPTER FIVE: POWERFUL SPELLS AND RITUALS FOR LOVE AND ROMANCE

Love has always been a problem. Witches and witchcraft have long been associated with the search for love. The warlock of medieval times, desiring to arouse love and passion in another, was required to make a figure of wax to represent the woman whose company he desired above all else.

The preliminaries included burning frankincense, and the lighting of two white candles.

The figure of wax, on which were inscribed the names of assorted demons, was passed back and forth through the fumes, while reciting the conjuration:

"I conjure and command thee, thou spirits, who have the power to disturb the hearts of women! By Him who created thee and by this image, I conjure thee this night into my presence, so I may have the power to compel whomsoever I desire to love me."

After this the figure of wax was taken to a place where three ways met, and buried.

In the old days those who had committed suicide, or those who had been executed for any kind of witchcraft, were buried at a crossing. Crossings were also considered as ideal places to summon Satan, or start toward a sabot.

You do not have to do anything so elaborate.

A MAGICAL MARRIAGE MANUAL

Is your romantic life everything you want it to be? Does the person you care for respond the way you want? The powerful Ritual I will soon reveal can help you in this area. With it you can induce your husband or wife, or partner, to come to you without asking, be affectionate to you, and voluntarily do the things you have longed for. But before you use it, I strongly suggest you sit down and read through a good marriage manual.

This will open up your eyes to a great many possibilities that you might not be aware of.

THE VOLCANIC PARTNER-ENSLAVING RITUAL

Carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Repeat the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call. Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to rekindle my mate's interest in me."

Word of Power: LINRAMA

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your desire is granted, whichever is sooner.

SYMPATHETIC LOVE MAGIC

The basis of sympathetic magic is that there is a connection between an object and a symbol.

For example, make a doll in the likeness of someone you don't like, stick pins in it and the victim gets stabbing pains in his back. Or gather together hair and nail clippings, burn them and the person in question gets a fever.

You do not always have to do something unpleasant. The best way to win the love of a maiden is to chant an incantation three times over an apple, give the fruit to the young girl to eat, and she will surely come to you.

The best example of sympathetic magic in witchcraft is the mandrake plant. A rather mysterious plant whose main use in the Middle Ages was as an aphrodisiac due to its shape, which resembles a certain part of the male anatomy. The powdered root of the mandrake was burned over a fire with some of the witch's pubic hair. At the same time, the witch's lustful desires were spoken, invoking a demon to draw the desired person to the witch's embrace.

Occult tradition has it that you can't harvest the mandrake plant in the normal way as the scream it gives as it leaves the ground will kill you or drive you mad.

The shriek is supposedly the cry of jealous spirits who dwell within. Instead you tie it to a dog's collar and, when out of earshot, whistle the dog to come to you.

THE SENSUAL YOU-ARE-MINE RITUAL

This Ritual is Powerful. With it you can attract a certain man or woman to you, excite romantic feelings for you, and make them stay with you for as long as you choose.

For the Ritual to work most efficiently you need to find something that has been in contact with the person. A hair or nail clipping is best. Next best is a picture of the person you wish to seduce. If you are unable to obtain these items, draw a sketch of the person on paper. To further identify the sketch, write the name of the person under your drawing of him or her.

Hold the contact object in your hands as you work the Ritual.

Carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Repeat the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call.

Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing.

State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to excite passion and desire in the heart of ... (name of person)."

Word of Power: LOLA.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual each night for six days or until the person comes to you, whichever is sooner.

THE LOVE POWER OF THE CRESCENT MOON

Another powerful love spell, still secretly practiced today, required the warlock to watch for a crescent or waning moon between 11 p.m. and midnight.

Before casting the spell he would write, on parchment, the name of the young girl he desired to attract, and draw a circle around it.

As soon as he saw the moon, he would seek out the brightest star in the night sky and recite a solemn conjuration so powerful it was believed capable of drawing any young girl the warlock desired to him. The conjuration was repeated three times and the parchment burned. The ashes were placed in the warlock's left shoe and were left there until the young girl either came to the warlock or faded away.

THE TITILLATING LET-OTHERS-NOTICE-ME RITUAL

Carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Recite the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call.

Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing.

State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be noticed by the opposite sex."

Word of Power: GOMORY.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your desire is granted, whichever is sooner.

HOW THE BYAKHEE CAN BRING LOVE INTO YOUR LIFE

The Mythos refers to the Byakhee as the elemental spirits of the Air and servitors of Hastur. They have the general appearance of gigantic bats, but despite their appearance the byakhee are obedient to those who call them in the Name of Hastur.

The byakhee are the guardians of human emotions, and can bring comfort when you are in the darkest depths of despair.

Their essence can be found in a gentle breeze, crystals and the beauty of a rainbow. This Spell will help you to enlist their aid in your romantic affairs.

As you begin to speak the words of the Spell, have the type of lover you are seeking clearly in mind.

The Spell works most efficiently when the Byakhee can focus on a particular target.

THE WONDERFUL BRING-ME-A-LOVER SPELL

After darkness has fallen, carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Then say:

I now request the Spirit Servitors
Of He who cannot be Named
To go forth and bring me a lover.
Let him/her desire only to please me
In whatever way he/she can.
By the Power and Authority
Of Lord Cthulhu, go forth
And make this happen!
Be it so.

Put your whole heart and soul into that recitation – give it all you've got, and use whichever pronoun applies.

THE IRRESISTABLE BRING-ROMANTIC-HARMONY RITUAL

Carry out the Ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling. Recite the Call to Cthulhu three times. Announce the Purpose of Your Call.

Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing.

State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to bring romantic harmony to my life."

Word of Power: CARDUAL

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give

Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your desire is granted, whichever is sooner.

CHAPTER SIX: HOW FIVE PEOPLE FOUND ROMANTIC HAPPINESS

"I'm tired of pursuing my husband," Connie F. told me on the phone. "I want him to do the things I long for – show me affection, take me places, and enjoy my companionship again."

"But," she said, "he hasn't looked at me in years! He falls asleep as soon as he eats dinner, or watches the wrestling, or reads sports magazines. Sometimes, he'll just disappear all day, without telling me where he's been."

It didn't take me long to convince Connie, an attractive 45 year-old pathology nurse, to try the Ritual of the Old Ones with the Partner Enslaving Ritual.

She called me the very next day.

"This morning at breakfast," she said, "he talked to me. I mean he really talked, and showed more interest in me than he has in years! We made plans to go to shows, to restaurants, and the country for the weekend."

Better was to come. That night, Connie's husband surprised her with a gift of roses. Together, now, they are enjoying life and her husband's love for her is ten times stronger than it ever was!

The You-Are-Mine Ritual Helped Cindy H. Seduce the Man of Her Dreams

Cindy H., a young office worker from Manila, Philippines, was very interested in what I had to say about using magic to excite love in the hearts of others.

"I'm totally frustrated," she confided to me in private. "Can magic help me?"
I assured her that it would and asked her if she had anyone, in particular, in mind. Enthusiastically, she described a young man who worked in her office.

"He's everything I've ever dreamed of in a man," she enthused. "Dark, handsome and arrogant. But as far as he is concerned, I'm just one of the office girls. He's totally indifferent to me."

One week of working the Sensual You-Are-Mine Ritual daily changed all that.

"That first morning after I named him during the ritual, he actually smiled at me," reported Cindy. "Next day he asked me to join him for a coffee. I went along willingly, of course, and would you believe he was holding my hand as we walked?"

On the third day, Cindy agreed to go out with him for a night on the town.

"It was perfect," she said. "I just sat and picked at my food, gazing deep into his eyes, hanging on his every word. And when he took me home, I invited him in for coffee."

Their love for each other quickly grew, and they are now married. Cindy can never say she is frustrated again.

The Let-Others-Notice-Me Ritual Made Thomas T. the Center of Attention

Thomas T., 48, still lived with his parents and was - in his own words "awkward around women." To make matters worse, he was slightly deaf. But he was still looking for female companionship.

Trouble was, the girls he liked never seemed to like him.

When he learned it was possible to influence others with the Let-Women-Notice-Me Ritual, he decided to give it a try. He was desperate, and would do anything it took to find happiness.

As a result, some few days later, when his parents were out for the day visiling relatives, he seized the opportunity to do the ritual to attract young glrls.

The very next day, as he walked to the local bus station, he noticed that a lot of women seemed to take a special interest in him as he walked past.

In the days that followed, women became more affectionate toward him, and he was the center of attention. He felt important, handsome and wanted - for the first time - and proceeded to make up for what he called "lost time."

The Bring-Me-A-Lover Spell Helped Carmen C. Find the Man of Her Dreams

Holy Week in Caracas, Venezuela is filled with bullfights, colorful parades, concerts and exhibits, and dancing in the public squares. Everyone is dressed in bright regional costumes, and in a happy carefree mood.

Did I say everyone?

Carmen C. was the classic ugly duckling. Shy, somewhat plain, she never had a boyfriend and was sinking deep into a black pit of despair. She tried to immerse herself in various interests.

She read books and cultivated a small garden, but it didn't ease the ache of loneliness nor the desire for companionship. The gaiety of Holy Week only served to reinforce her despair.

She conveyed something of her feelings to me in an e-mail, and she asked me some very direct questions about the effectiveness of magic in general, and the Old Ones in particular, to bring love into her life. It was obvious what she was thinking when she composed the e-mail. Could the Power of the Old Ones not only make someone notice her, but also fall in love with her?

The answer was not long in coming.

I advised her to retire to her room for six consecutive nights, relax, and cast the Wonderful-Bring-Me-A-Lover Spell, and to see what happened.

On the third night of casting the Spell, she dreamt that she was sitting at a table

in her favorite cafe near the Plaza Ibarra, just off Avenida Baralt. In her dream, she was talking to a handsome young man in a blue blazer.

When she awoke, Carmen knew she had seen the man destined to be her lover in the dream.

Carmen went to the cafe, but was a little disappointed when she first got there, as no one seemed to resemble the man seen in her dream. About 30 minutes had passed when, suddenly, she looked up and the "man of her dreams" was standing in front of her.

"Mind if I sit here?" he asked ... and nor nally shy Carmen took it from there. She found him to be everything she had been hoping for, and more. Three months later, they were married, and are deliriously happy.

The Bring-Romantic-Harmony Ritual Helped Nick C. Win Back His Girlfriend

When I first met Nick C. in Brighton, England, he was as close to the bottom of the barrel as it is possible to be.

His girlfriend had recently separated from him and moved to London. He no longer cared about his appearance or the job he had lost. He was about to be evicted from his small flat, and the Phone Company was threatening to disconnect his phone line.

He was totally broke, and asked me for the price of a "coffee" when I first encountered him outside an occult art shop, on Trafalgar Street. One thing led to another until we were having an intense conversation in the middle of the sidewalk, much to the amusement of other passers by.

When he found out I was studying and researching the magical power of the Old Ones, he wanted o know more.

"Can't you give me a Speil or a Magic Word to get my girlfriend back?" he asked. I explained a little bit bout the Old Ones, the different Callings, and how to cast the Powerful Bring-Romantic-Harmony Ritual.

"It takes a bit of time and practice for newbies," I said. "And you must be sober, else forget it."

He agreed to stay off the bottle for the next three consecutive days and nights. If it meant getting his girlfriend back, he would do it. He went happily on his way, clutching the instructions I ad writ en down on a piece of paper.

On the morning of the third day, his telephone rang. It was his girlfriend. "I Just can't stand it ir London," she said. "It's as if something is pulling at me all the time to come back to you. I'm so sorry I hurt you, honey. Can you ever forgive me?"

Needless to say, Nick was more than happy to take her back. But the best was to come. With a reason to live again, Nick changed completely. He showered, put on his one good suit, downed a couple of cups of coffee, and went out to look for a new job.

A month later, Nick and his girlfriend were married.

CHAPTER SEVEN: UNIQUE SPELLS AND RITUALS TO SOLVE YOUR PROBLEMS

The motivating power of the Old Ones works in all areas of life. One of the areas where there is, perhaps, the greatest need is in the area of health and well being. No matter how happy your life may be, when you become a victim to the misery of sickness, life loses its charm. In this chapter you will see how to use special "healing spells" to help you, or another, to a complete recovery.

Note: These Spells must not be used as a substitute for regular medical treatment.

They should be used only in conjunction with your doctor's recommendations and prescriptions.

HOW THE DEEP ONES CAN HEAL YOU

The Mythos refers to the Deep Ones as the elemental spirits of water and the spawn of Cthulhu. They have the general appearance of fish-like hu nanoid beings, but despite their appearance the Deep Ones are benevolent and obedient to those who call them in the Name of Lord Cthulhu. The Deep Ones are the guardians of health and well being, and inhabit the deepest depths of the Eternal Sea.

Their essence can be found in lakes, oceans, and the smallest drop of water. This Spell will help you to enlist their aid in your affairs.

THE MARVELOUS WATER-HEAL-ME SPELL

On a clear night, when the Moon is full and bright, find a photograph of yourself, taken when you were younger and brimming with healtnend vitality.

If you are unable to find such a photograph, use instead a picture of any young and healthy person of the same sex as yourself.

You are now ready to begin.

Place an ordinary padded kitchen chair at the center of your cleared space. Once your chair is positioned, fix the picture to a convenient wall at eye-level, using sticky tape to secure it.

Fill a glass with water (pure table water is best) and place it on a small table in front of you.

If you wish you can light a single candle, burn a stick of incense or have relaxing music playing. If you choose to use a candle, put out all the lights and move the picture until the light of the candle illuminates it.

Carry out the Ritua! of the Old Ones up to the Calling.

Sit back in your chair. Stare at the picture and consider how you would like to appear to others. Look into the eyes in the picture. Don't make a big thing of it, be relaxed and blink when you need to – but continue to look steadily at the picture for a full two minutes.

Then say:

Hear me, Deep Ones, of the Eternal Sea.
I call you in the Name of Him we adore.
Let that which is old
Be young again.
Let that which is diseased
Be whole again.
Let Him who is sleeping
Be born again.
Be it so.

Pick up the glass of water and drink the water. Then (if you have chosen to use a candle) turn on the lights, extinguish the candle, remove the picture from the wall, and go about your business as usuai.

THE GENUINE BACK-TO-HEALTH RITUAL

This Ritual is designed to reinforce the prescriptions and medical treatment recommended by your doctor, and will help bring glowing health and strength. Carry out the ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling, and recite the Call to Cthulhu three times.

Announce the Purpose of Your Call.

Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to regain my health."

Word of Power: HIBELZIWA.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until your health has improved, whichever is sooner.

HOW THE OUTER ONES CAN PROTECT YOU FROM HARM

The Mythos refers to the Outer Ones as the elemental spirits of fire and servitors of Yog-Sothoth. They have the general appearance of gigantic, winged crustaceans, but despite their appearance the Outer Ones are obedient to those who have called to Yog-Sothoth. The Outer Ones are the guardians of those who traffic with the Old Ones, and inhabit the fiery depths of a candle flame. Their essence can be found in fire, the color red and anger. This Spell will place a shield around you against which your enemies will be powerless.

THE FORCEFUL I-AM-PROTECTED SFELL

If you have people who are making your life uncomfortable, use this Spell. It is designed to strike unknown fears, anger and faulty juagment at whomever you aim it at.

His or her attacks will lose direction and force, and you will be protected from their negative actions. You should be able to name your enemy, and be sure they are deliberately harming or maliciously opposing you before unleashing the devastating Powers of the Outer Ones on them. Work it a day or two before the New Moon.

Do not use this Spell against someone who is sending black magic or the evil eye against you, as they will have their own protective forces around them and what is being wished upon them will then happen to you instead.

Arrange a table so that as you sit before it you are facing sorta.

Take a candle and place it on the table. An ordinary while candle will do, but you can add greater power to the Spell if you use a brown one Light the candle, extinguish all other lights, and sit down at the table. Look toward the southern horizon. There will probably be a wall of the room in the way, but stare through it as if you were watching a scene far away from you.

Concentrate on the person you wish to work your magic on as you light the candle.

Say (or think):

Hear me, Yog-Sothoth, Lurker at the Threshold Open the Gates, Bring forth your servitors Protect me from ...

As you finish the invocation, say the name of your enemy three times. Now think of your enemy surrounded by a green mist.

Imagine this mist to be filled with wet slimy things, crawling horrors, weird creatures and evil skeletons slipping, slithering and moving around your enemy. Repeat his or her name three times more. Say:

The heart that beats
The blood that flows
The mind that thinks
As these words are spoken
A life is broken.

Say the name of your enemy as you then extinguish the candle. Follow that by saying:

Be it so.

Repeat this Spell two times more before the Moon is New.

THE EXPLOSIVE DESTROY-MY-ENEMIES RITUAL

This Ritual is designed to confuse the minds of your enemies, to make their attacks lose direction and force. Carry out the ritual of the Old Ones up to the Calling, and recite the Call to Cthulhu three times.

Announce the Purpose of Your Call.

Use the words given in the Ritual, or use some of your own which mean the same thing. State Your Purpose once.

Next, turning counter-clockwise, firmly speak the Word of Power to the Four Corners of the room. As you stand facing north again, recite the Arcane Invocation once.

Call to Cthulhu: IA, IA, CTHULHU!

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to vanquish my enemies."

Word of Power: NARIEL.

Arcane Invocation: "Spirit of the Earth, Give Power! Spirit of the Sky, Give Power! Spirit of the Water, Give Power! Spirit of the Flame, Give Power!"

Repeat this Ritual for six consecutive days or until you are victorious over your enemies, whichever is sooner. You can vanquish your enemies with a blast of Magic.

HOW YOU CAN RECEIVE HELP FROM THE ALL-SEEING EYE

Whatever you are trying to achieve, you know that the task will get done much more effortlessly and effectively if you can call for help.

You have already learned how to call on the Powers of the Old Ones during the Ritual of the Old Ones and other magical workings, and now you can add another powerful tool for working genuine ancient magic.

You are about to discover how to call the servitors of Nyarlathotep (the all-seeing eye) from unknown places to assist you in your majical workings, and help

you achieve your desires.

The Necronomicon refers to these entities as Gugs. They have the general appearance of huge black-furred beings, and their essence con be found in earth, stone and the darkest depths of caverns. You are about to learn how to enlist their aid in your affairs.

How can these entities from outside the Spheres help you? Any way you can imagine, and a few special ways known only to the Old Ones. When you have clearly established contact with these entities, you can expect tangible help of any sort you need. They will act as intermediaries between the Old Ones and you. They are, if you like, the personification of the telepathic powers of the Old Ones.

THE MAGIC THAT WILL BRING NYLARTHOTEP TO YOU

Preparations are simple, but you need to ensure silence with no interruptions for at least 15 minutes. First switch off the TV and radio and memorize the following invocation, because you will need to be able to repeat it with your eyes closed:

God of a Thousand Forms
I request your assistance
Send your servitors to me
I ask that they speak to me.

Next, place an ordinary padded kitchen chair in the center of your cleared space.

Once your chair is positioned, use that spot each time you work the Ritual of Nyarlathotep.

Darken the room by drawing the drapes or wait until darkness has fallen. Ideally, the room should be dim enough so that you cannot read the words printed in this book – but it should never be pitch black during these sessions.

Some people find that a single candle burning helps them.

Loosen any tight clothing you may be wearing.

Sit back in your chair. Make yourself comfortable with your back straight, but not stiff.

Your head should balance easily on your shoulders without any straining to hold the position.

Place your feet flat on the floor, almost touching. Lay your hands in one of two ways whichever feels easier.

Either palms upward on your lap, or palms downward on your thighs. This is the position you should adopt at all times during the Ritual.

You are now ready to start.

THE RITUAL OF NYARLATHOTEP

While the forces you are commanding are obedient to Nyarlathotep, I suggest you practice with other Spells and Rituals before you try this one. It can produce results which are startling to people who have never investigated occult forces.

The best time to work this Ritual is on the night of a New Moon, between midnight and 1 a.m.

Sit down comfortably in your chair, and close your eyes. Breathe deeply for several minutes.

Let your breathing return to normal, and then say the above it vocation three times.

(If there is any likelihood that anyone will overhear you, just say the invocation in your mind).

Then sit quietly for a few minutes.

Stay relaxed and let your mind wander, as it will. Listen to the silence. Particularly listen for the faint sounds of a flute far away in the distance, which may reach you.

Then, in your mind, ask a question. Make it a serious question – nothing flippant. If you make fun of the Gugs or Nyarlathotep during this Ritual, you'll merely get confusing replies – or worse.

So state the question in your mind, and then let your mind go quiet again. Pay attention to the silence around you. If no sounds reach you, try listening with your mind. Be aware of answers coming into your mind as thoughts of unknown origin.

This has taken far longer to spell out in detail than it takes to perform. It may take a few workings before a channel of communication is established. But once you have built a firm contact, you will be given startling knowledge by this means.

CHAPTER EIGHT: HOW FIVE PEOPLE SOLVED THEIR LIFE PROBLEMS

Don't tell Jane D. of Louisiana that life begins at 40. Hers began for her, she says, at 65, and she's looking forward to another 50 years of excitement, thanks to the Water-Heal-Me Spell.

Not long ago, Jane was a sad old woman with only memories to sustain her.

Rheumatism gave her chronic pains in the winter, and as the years passed her once firm body turned to fat. But the thing she regretted most was the fading of her natural beauty.

Her younger years had been active, and her social life had its moments. But now she lived alone in a small apartment, and would spe..d long hours staring at the four walls.

Jane had spent a small fortune on different beauty creams and products that promised instant youth – all .o no avail.

Her frustration and anguish reached a peak when a widower moved into the apartment across the hall.

He was handsome and polite, 'ut Jane might as well have been invisible.

"He doesn't care because I'm ugly," she thought, her eyes brimming with unshed tears.

Jane's savior came along in the unlikely shape of a bespectacled young man trying to sell low cost long distance phone calls.

Jane said she wasn't interested, but the young man just smiled and asked if there was anything else he could do for her. "You can make me young again," she said bitterly.

"Maybe I can," the young man said, smiling gently.

"What do you mean?" asked Jane.

After swearing Jane to secrecy, the young man explained the simple techniques of the Water-Heal-Me Spell to her. She was willing to try anything after the failures she'd had – even though she doubted it would work.

Jane couldn't have been more wrong.

Within days after working the Spell she felt more confident, and when the widower across the hall asked her out on a date, her confidence grew.

Jane has taken out a new lease on life, now. Her rheumatism has gone, and her body has started to firm up again like a woman in her forties. She has been reborn anew.

The Destroy-My-Enemies Ritual Protected David H. from a Hex

David H., from a small town in Iowa, was well versed in all things occult. Consequently it didn't take him long to realize what was happening when he found himself, after having a violent argument with the old lady in the next apartment, suddenly stricken with terrible headach s that just wouldn't go away.

The old lady hated him for no reaso. at all, and delighted in spreading gossip about him. She had even told his landlord that David should be locked up because he was crazy.

His doctor prescribed powerful analgesics for the headaches, but it didn't help him at all. It didn't take him long to find that the most probable cause was a hex put on him by the old lady.

The next step was to find an effective counter-attack to use against the old lady's

magic. He contacted me by telephone, and we finally decided that the strongest and surest means to achieve this end was the Destroy-My-Enemies Ritual.

A veek after David used this Ritual he heard voices and scuffling in the corridor outside his apartment. He opened his front door a crack to peep out.

The old lady, who had caused him so much physical and emotional pain, was being carried off downstairs on a stretcher by a couple of medics. It seems she had suffered a paralyzing stroke and was being moved to a rest home.

As soon as she was gone, David's headaches started to lessen, and three days later were gone for good.

The I-Am-Protected Spell Helped Sharon K. Blast Her Enemies

Sharon K., a hair stylist, had reached the depths of despair and was fighting to save her job when she came to a colleague of mine for a consultation. Her deep distress was the result of a whispering campaign and the actions of jealous rivals at her place of work.

Sharon, hard working, reliable and conscientious, had never been popular with the other girls at the beauty salon. Unlike them, she was dedicated to her work and was one of the best employees at the salon. But then several of the other girls ganged up on her simply because they were jealous of her work and the many bonuses she received for bringing regular clients into the salon.

There was nothing she could prove, but she just knew they were responsible for her problems. Plastic shampoo bottles would suddenly start leaking, as if someone had slit them with a razor. Scissors would fall apart.

Tubes of hair dye would be wrongly marked, causing her to put the wrong color in her clients' hair. And long time regular customers would be contacted by phone, and told she was too busy to see them.

Her work began to suffer, and anytime she stepped the least bit out of line with the other girls, her boss got to hear of it quickly.

Sharon struggled on hoping things would change. They did - they got worse.

Due to a downturn in the economy, business at the salon started going down and the owner announced that she might be forced to lay some employees off, as an economic measure.

With this revelation the campaign to undermine her good name and confidence intensified, and it really started to get her down.

My friend suggested she should use the Forceful I-Am-Protected Spell. "Whether you believe in magic or not, use it," he told her. "Work it on the people who are tormenting you, and they'll be taught a lesson they won't forget."

Hopelessly, she agreed. Within a week, she came back to see my friend. The look on her face told him the Spell had worked.

Smiling from ear to ear, and a sparkle in her eyes, she told him how the first day after casting the Spell, her rivals in the salon got into a brawl at a local bar – for

no reason at all. Sharon's boss got the full story from the bartender next day, and it was them (not Sharon) who were discharged from their jobs – for economic reasons. She thanked my friend profusely for his help, and promised to keep in touch.

There was no need for her to thank him. It was the Outer Ones and the Forceful I-Am-Protected Spell that deserved her gratitude.

The Back-To-Health Ritual Cured James S. of Stomach Pains

Jim S. of San Francisco, California was apt to take good health for granted. Jogging every day, cross-country hikes, a friendly game of football at the weekend, a game of squash every night after work, and a balanced diet kept Jim in the peak of condition – the concept of becoming ill was unthinkable to him. It was only when he was suddenly struck down with excruciating stomach pains, and rushed into hospital, did he realize good health can never be taken for granted.

When Jim's mom came to me for a consultation, it was plain to see the effect her son's illness was having on her. Worry lines were engraved in her brow, and her hair hang lank and graying across her lack-luster eyes. She had not eaten or slept properly for days.

"I've tried praying," she said miserably. "But that didn't help. I've even considered flying him to the Philippines to let one of those psychic surgeons work on him, but I'm afraid the trip might be too much of a strain on him. I'm at my wits end. I don't know what to do. Please, can you help me?"

I suggested she work the Genuine Back-To-Health Rithal each night, focusing its healing energies on her son, until Jim's condition improved. I also stressed that he should continue with any medical treatment prescribed by the doctors at the hospital.

She agreed to clear a space in her living room to work the Ritual.

I knew the magic had worked as soon as Jim's mom came to see me one evening a few nights later, grinning like a Cheshire Cat. Gone were the deep lines from her face. Her eyes sparkled with joy, and her hair shone with new life.

"I checked Jim out of the hospital yesterday," she beamed. "The mysterious pains are gone, and he's completely revitalized. It's a miracle. The doctors were amazed by his sudden recovery, and I would be too – if I didn't know it was the Genuine Back-To-Health Ritual that helped my son be whole again."

Maybe you have a friend or relative who is ill and in need of a healing. Carry out the Genuine Back-To-Health Ritual on them, and watch them improve – you'll be amazed at the results.

The Ritual of Nyarlathotep Helped Scott A. Achieve His Ambition

The individual at the center of this case history has sworn me to secrecy, and made me promise not to reveal his true identity. And even if I did tell the world that he

got to the top by Magic, he'd deny it and have me labeled as a kook. Naturally, I've changed his name to comply with his wishes.

His sense of humor was the only thing Scott A. could truly call his own. He had a burning desire to receive recognition in show business as a stand-up comic, but he waited in vain for the big time to discover him.

Apart from the huge salaries and fame successful comics can achieve, his idea of happiness at the time was to be on TV in front of a live studio audience, interacting with them, making them laugh, entertaining them, and helping them forget about life for a while.

Dark little clubs, amateur shows and charity benefits, all heard Scott's comedy routine. One night, by chance, an adept of Magic was among the crowd in one of those dark little clubs. He listened to Scott's routine, even laughed at a few of his jokes, but as he sat watching his mind was moving forward to Scott's future.

After his act was over, the adept sought Scott out backstage.

"You'll not be working in places like this for long," he told him. "You're heading for fame and fortune. But you've got to improve your material, and be in the right place at the right time to take full advantage of the good luck coming your way. You've already been in the right place, but didn't realize it – at least, not yet. Read this, it'll help you."

He handed Scott a folded piece of paper. It told how to work the Ritual of Nyarlathotep. Scott worked the Ritual that very night, asking Nyarlathotep to guide him to success, and nothing happened. No sudden flash of inspiration, nor the sound of a far away flute.

"That was a waste of time," he thought. "I should have known better."

But Magic was working quietly in Scott's favor. Two days later, a representative of a talent agency contacted him. Seems he, too, had been in the crowd of that dark little club; it was from the club's owner that he had obtained Scott's phone number.

He went on to explain that while he found some of Scott's material amusing, most of it was just plain ordinary. But the following day (the day after Scott worked the Ritual), he couldn't get Scott's routine out of his head, and by day's end was convinced that he (Andrew) had genuine comedic talent – and wanted to represent him.

Naturally, Scott jumped at the chance. A totally new and stimulating existence began for him, and progress was swift. Guest spots on local TV and radio, appearances on talk and variety shows, everything he had dreamed of was coming true. Fame and fortune quickly followed.

Maybe you have a secret ambition or dream you want to achieve by secret and invisible means. Work the Ritual of Nyarlathotep, and ask the future be shaped such that your desires are realized – you'll be delighted with the results.

CHAPTER NINE: MAGICAL MINI-RITUALS TO BRING YOU WHATEVER YOU DESIRE

What would you give to be able to utter a single word (Solo-Word) incantation that would bring a sudder unexpected windfall? Or say another, and immediately recover some lost or stolen object? What would it be worth to you to say another, and draw the perfect mate into your arms? Would it surprise you to learn that there are such incantations and that all you need to do to make one of them work for you is say it, and wait for the desired result?

The spirit servitors of the Old Ones also respond to single, Solo-Word Incantations. The Mini-Rituals revealed in this chapter, are instruments of True Magic: simple gestures, uttered words, and seemingly illogical actions that are used to produce results that seem to bear little relation to the method.

Remember at all times that scientific logic forms little part of the Arcane Arts
– in fact, Magic is beyond logic, as science knows it.

These Mini-Rituals are generally used when help is needed fast. Although powerful, they are generally less powerful than the longer Rituals.

Moreover, the Solo-Word Incantations are not English words, but have been derived from those who traffic (sometimes unknowingly) with the Old Ones.

MINI-RITUALS FOR EVERY POSSIBLE NEED AND DESIRE

What do you need to make you happy?

How would you like to have a steady flow of cash? To crush your enemies? To know what the future holds, and be able to change it? To be glowing with health and vitality? To arouse love and passion in another person? To banish bad luck forever and never again suffer a setback, frustration or opposition? To win contests and games of chance? To dissolve all kinds of evil—the schemes of others, the cruelty of a neighbor, co-worker or boss? To restore a happy marriage? To influence others on your behalf? To make your business boom? To rekindle a mate's interest? To bring a lover to you without asking? To break through social barriers?

Yes, you can do all that, and more. You will find 26 different Mini-Rituals on the following pages.

Those 26 Rituals cover every possible need. As you begin to recite the Incantations, make certain that you have the object of your desire clearly in mind. In that way you will be attuning yourself with the magical forces you are calling.

MINI-RITUAL TO WIN CONTESTS

This Ritual is designed to turn luck vibrations your way in contests where chance is the chief factor in winning. It will help you to win lotteries, card games and other games of chance whenever you please.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to win a prize in the contest I shall enter." The single word incantation is MISABU.

MINI-RITUAL TO BRING GOOD LUCK

This Ritual is designed to bring you good luck, and put you in the right place at the right time to fulfill your every desire.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to receive good fortune at all times." The single word incantation is BAZALIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO INCREASE YOUR ASSETS

If you wish to increase existing money, use this Ritual. It is designed to multiply your existing assets.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to increase my personal assets." The single word incantation is CARACASA.

MINI-RITUAL TO BANISH POVERTY

This Ritual can bring money when you are in the depths of poverty.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to receive abundant wealth."

The single word incantation is DOMARIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO INCREASE PHYSICAL POWERS

This Ritual is used to recreate physical abilities, which have lessened or become weak due to illness or advancing old age.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be reborn anew." The single word incantation is ABUHUIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO BRING A LOVER

This Ritual will help you to develop ultra-potent sex appeal to bring a lover to you suited to your needs. The other person will see you as handsome or beautiful,

virile and intelligent and be drawn to you as irresistibly as a needle is pulled to a magnet.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to bring the perfect lover to me."

The single word incantation is FAVADIEN.

MINI-RITUAL TO ENSLAVE A PARTNER

Use this ritual to arouse any emotion you wish in another person. It can make your wife or husband or some long admired person of the opposite sex be affectionate to you, and voluntarily do the things you have longed for.

The better you know the person, the less time it takes.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to make ... (name of person) a slave to my commands."

The single word incantation is GAFIAL.

MINI-RITUAL FOR GOOD HEALTH

This Ritual banishes general indispositions and brings glowing health and strength.

Note: This Ritual must not be used as a substitute for recognized or regular medical treatment. It should be used only in conjunction with your doctor's recommendations and prescriptions.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to regain my health."

The single word incantation is ISLIA.

MINI-RITUAL TO BANISH DISEASE

If you know the names of the diseases YOU are suffering from, include them in the Call.

Note: This Ritual must not be used as a substitute for medical treatment. It should be used only in conjunction with your doctor's recommendations and prescriptions.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to banish the following diseases ..."
The single word incantation is HIBIELZIWA.

MINI-RITUAL TO RELAX

This Ritual, although apparently minor in its application, is a powerful way of banishing physical tensions and nervousness.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be relieved of all physical tensions." The single word incantation is YADUTON.

MINI-RITUAL FOR POWER OVER OTHERS

This Ritual generates an Inner Power that turns uncooperative people into willing listeners who know that whatever you are telling them is the absolute Truth. When speaking to anyone, look at the square inch space between his or her eyes at the bridge of the nose. In just a few minutes, you will find that the other person is agreeing with you.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to overcome the will of others." The single word incantation is CAFIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO OVERCOME OPPOSITION

Use this Ritual to overcome all opposition in life. Use it before you enter any kind of competitive situation.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to overcome all opposition." The single word incantation is ONRA.

MINI-RITUAL TO MAKE OTHERS OBEY

Use this Ritual to make a particular person obey your wishes.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to impose my will on others."

The single word incantation is MEMUNAI.

MINI-RITUAL TO VANQUISH ENEMIES

Before you work this Ritual, you must be absolutely sure that you have enemies. If you are merely in a cycle of bad luck, then use the Mini-Ritual to Banish Bad Luck. The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to be victorious over my enemies." The single word incantation is NARIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO CHANGE THE OPINIONS OF OTHERS

Have the person whose opinion you wish to change clear in your mind before working this Ritual, it works best when it can be focused on a particular target.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to change the opinion of others to my advantage."

The single word incantation is ORUMASIM.

MINI-RITUAL TO BRING SUCCESS

Decide exactly what you wish to become in what field. The more precise your thoughts, the more accurately the Ritual can execute them.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to reach the pinnacle of success."
The single word incantation is UVAYA.

MINI-RITUAL FOR SUCCESS IN BUSINESS

This Ritual is very much orientated toward trade and business.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to achieve success in my business."

The single word incantation is CAFSIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO PASS A TEST

Be prepared to describe the test and its details clearly.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to pass (here name the test) successfully."

The single word incantation is RABIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO DISCOVER HIDDEN TALENTS

You have talents that are as yet undiscovered or not fully used; this Ritual will help you to discover those hidden talents.

After working this Ritual, accept all chances that come your way to improve your existing skills, or try your hand at new occupations, hobbies or crafts.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to awaken my hidden talents."

The single word incantation is SAMIEL.

MINI-RITUAL FOR SELF-CONFIDENCE

Use this Ritual before you make a personal appearance in front of an audience.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to achieve self-confidence."

The single word incantation is TAUMIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO KNOW THE FUTURE

Knowing the future gives you tremendous advantages.

After working the Ritual, note what information about the future is given to you in your dreams.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to know the unknown."

The single word incantation is VO-WOMANA.

MINI-RITUAL TO FIND LOST OBJECTS

Use this Ritual to find lost or stolen objects.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to find that we

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to find that which is lost." The single word incantation is YANO.

MINI-RITUAL FOR A NEW HOME

Best results are achieved when you know where you wish to go. However, if you have no new home in mind, the Old Ones will locate one for you.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to find happiness in a new home." The single word incantation is PURUSA.

MINI-RITUAL TO CAUSE DISCORD

People must be deliberately harming or maliciously opposing you before you unleash the devastating powers of the Old Ones on them. This Ritual is designed to produce discord between people who are at odds with you.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to cause discord between ..." (name those between whom you wish to see discord).

The single word incantation is XONIOR.

MINI-RITUAL TO BANISH BAD LUCK

Work this Ritual when your life is at its worst. The Old Ones will gladly accept the challenge of banishing misery caused by bad luck vibrations.

The Furpose of Your Call: "I do this to hurl my bad luck from me."

The sing e word incantation is ZURAIEL.

MINI-RITUAL TO REPULSE ENEMIES

The Old Ones are adept at turning away the turmoil caused by enemies. This Ritual will protect you from their actions. If you wish to hurt them, use the Mini-Ritual to Vanquish Enemies.

The Purpose of Your Call: "I do this to banish my enemies from me." The single word incantation TASIEM.

WORKING THE MINI-RITUALS IS EASY

First, decide on what you need. Next, use the Solo-Word Incantation boldly: stride into the room, stand at the center of your cleared space, and firmly state what you wish to achieve. Use the words in the Mini-Ritual details, or let your own thoughts and words guide you.

Recite the Incantation loudly, flinging it to the Four Corners. Nine times out of ten, you will get the desired result within 24 hours of working the Ritual.

This is genuine ancient Magic, and the results are going to amaze you.

CHAPTER TEN: HOW SEVEN PEOPLE WORKED MAG!C IN THEIR LIVES

Does the Magic Power of the Mini-Rituals really work? The best way to answer that question is to share with you "mini case histories" of some of the people the rituals have helped.

Louise F. is one of them. After 20 years of marriage, she found herself on the verge of bankruptcy following the death of her beloved husband. No matter how hard or how long she tried, she just couldn't seem to make enough money to pay the mortgage and other monthly bills. She was afraid that she would lose the house and be forced out onto the street.

With no family to turn to for help, she was in a seemingly hopeless situation. So when a friend suggested that she use one of the Mini-Rituals to bring good luck, she was willing to give it a try. She followed the simple instructions.

Suddenly, things began to happen for her in a big way. To her amazement, a letter came in the mail advising her that she had won a year's supply of groceries in a supermarket promotion. Then an offer of a better-paying job came her way through a friend who knew of her situation. Finally, she won \$10,000 in the state lottery.

At long last, the power of the Old Ones and the Mini-Rituals are working for her, instead of against her.

A Mini-Ritual Brought Don G. Success in Business

Don G. was fighting to keep his business solvent. The economic recession was inflicting heavy losses on the small new age bookstore he had launched in his hometown.

He had sunk every penny he had and every dime he could borrow into the business, but sales were going down and he would be out of business in less than a month if something dramatic didn't happen to halt the downward spiral. His credit rating was zero, creditors were applying pressure, and suppliers were demanding payment in seven days or else legal proceedings would commence.

Each week Don watched as the thin line of profit dropped lower and lower.

Christmas '76 was the fatal season. Competition from the major bookstores was fierce, sales dropped lower than ever, and he sadly planned to go into liquidation.

A stranger came into the store and bought a few books, he looked intently at Don and asked him what was troubling him. Don poured out his troubles to the stranger, grateful for someone to tell his problems to.

The stranger suggested Don try a Mini-Ritual for business success, and while he did not believe something so simple would work, he agreed to give it a try.

Each day after he had locked up, he worked the Ritual at the store in the back room. He did this daily for seven consecutive days, and then stopped and waited to see what happened.

Suddenly things began to break wide open for him. To his astonishment, on the morning of the eighth day a representative of a bookstore chain came to see him.

He was in the market to buy small, unprofitable bookstores and put the original owner back in as manager. Naturally, Don accepted the offer. The bookstore chain enlarged and streamlined his store, and paid him a handsome salary larger than any profit he'd ever made from his economizing.

The Mini-Ritual had changed Don's life forever.

A Mini-Ritual Brought Unlucky Marilyn S. Romantic Happiness

When it came to love and romance, Marilyn S. figured she was born under an unlucky star. Nothing else could explain the string of failed romances that had plagued her since her teens.

No matter how responsive she was or how hard she tried, she just never seemed able to make any romantic relationship with the opposite sex work. She wanted desperately to be married to a man whom she would devote her life to – forever and always.

She tried to be optimistic and laugh off her many romantic failures, but eventually they broke her spirit. She became withdrawn and suspicious of all men.

It was at the nadir of melancholy that, at the insistence of a friend, Marilyn contacted me via e-mail.

"I've totally lost hope of ever finding romantic happiness, " she wrote. "The loneliness is driving me crazy. I've even considered suicide; perhaps in the next world Fate will be kinder to me. Any suggestions ... any at all?"

I realized that in her current state of emotional angst, a long or complicated Spell or Ritual was out of the question. Marilyn needed help – fast.

I e-mailed her back instructions on how to work a Mini-Ritual for romantic happiness, and suggestions on how she might apply it to her own personal needs and desires.

Her next e-mail to me was brief and to the point. "Wow ... it worked! Thanks. Thanks a million," was all she wrote – but I know, and Marilyn knows, that her desire for romantic happiness and the Mini-Ritual did it for her.

A Mini-Ritual Brought Unhappy Mike W. A New Place to Live

In many ways, young Mike W's landlady was a model landlady. As time went by, however, Mike found himself disliking her. She seemed to have a sly way about her. He sensed that she was laughing at him behind his back, at his preoccupation with the occult, at his numerous trips to the library to study certain volumes of arcane lore, his fondness for cats, and the various other little eccentricities that went to make him a unique individual. He longed to find a new home away from his landlady.

Long a believer in the Old Ones, Mike finally decided to call on them to bring a solution to his problem. One night, after speaking with me on the telephone, he prepared to work a Mini-Ritual to find a new home. If his landlady heard anything as he spoke the Incantation to the four quarters, she would have laughed it off as him talking to himself.

The magical working paid off sooner than he dared hope. The very next day, he received a phone call from an old school friend of his offering him the opportunity to house sit for him. The friend's company was sending him overseas for one year to work in their Paris office, and he needed someone he could trust to look after his house while he was away. Seems Mike's name had suddenly popped into his head the night before.

A Mini-Ritual Took Marie G. from Rags to Riches

If you met Marie G. today, you wouldn't believe that just a few years ago she was a thin, stoop-shouldered mouse of a woman, miserable and frustrated.

I was researching and developing the Mini-Rituals for this book, and Marie's name came up as someone who could benefit from a Mini-Ritual to increase personal assets.

I discovered that much of her discontentment centered on her failure to satisfy her expensive tastes. In particular, she was frustrated by the fact she could barely scrape along on her low salary as an office worker. She was living from hand to mouth, gambling away her money as fast as she could earn it, always hoping for that one big win.

I offered her hope with the Magic Power of the Old Ones. I told her to carry out the Mini-Ritual to increase her assets, and let me know what happened.

Overnight the Secret of the Mini-Rituals changed her life. From a born loser, she became a born winner. Before she knew it, all her gambling debts were paid off, and the money started to flow in faster than she had ever dared dream it could. She was able to set up a luxurious apartment in the best part of town, with expensive furniture and the latest electronic products.

My latest news of Marie at the time of writing this is that she now uses the Mini-Ritual on the stock market – and finds, to her delight, that it works better there than on games of chance. She works the Mini-Ritual the night before selecting stocks, and only chooses the ones that "feel right" to her.

That Mini-Ritual is in this book for you to use, just as Marie did.

A Mini-Ritual Gave Vanessa D. a New Life to Live

Life as a single mother was difficult enough for Vanessa D., without having extra problems come her way. She was wondering why things had gone so bad for her, and what she could do about it.

"Things aren't going well for me," she told Chris J., a personal friend of mine and avid student of the occult. "Nothing seems to work out the way I want it to. I can't seem to get ahead at work. I have strange pains in parts of my body that have never hurt me before. And old friends seem to be avoiding me."

Always seeking ways of helping others, Chris suggested she might be the victim of a hex placed with her by an unknown enemy.

Vanessa did not believe him at first, but she was so desperate for a change of luck she was willing to try anything.

He instructed her to carry out the Mini-Ritual to banish bad luck once each day for seven days. He also told her if proper results were not obtained, she should repeat the Mini-Ritual again daily for seven days, or until she experienced a complete change of luck from bad to good.

Chris knew the Mini-Ritual had worked as soon as he heard Vanessa's voice on the telephone one evening a week or so later.

"The day after I tried the Ritual for the first time," she told him, "I got promoted at work. My old friends are talking to me again. And those strange pains have gone. Everything has started to go my way. My whole life has changed, and everything's great again."

Coincidence or Magic? You be the judge.

A Mini-Ritual Lifted Ernst S. from Poverty to Opulence

Once a year in the beautiful town of Heilbron, Germany the residents of a small rundown apartment block on Wartbergstrasse see a luxurious dark-blue BMW glide to a halt outside their roach-infested building.

From inside the car, an elegantly dressed man steps out on to the sidewalk. He smiles up at the building, and thinks about how his life once was.

From his handmade shoes and diamond-studded digital wristwatch to the top of his perfectly groomed head, he looks the picture of opulence.

That man is Ernst S. and he once lived in a tiny one-bedroom apartment in that dark, squalid building.

Not so long ago Ernst was working long hours in a factory, with little prospect of seeing any changes until he retired on a small pension. His health was poor. He was always short of cash. He had no car, no television and just a few sticks of furniture to call his own.

I met him in his small apartment in October 1996. I had, at the time, been studying the occult in general, and the Old Ones in particular, for 18 years. Ernst was interested in my theories, and I gave him the barest outline of h w to apply the magic power of a Mini-Ritual to banish poverty – in a shape that his inner mind could understand and use easily.

He didn't really expect anything to happen, I'm sure of that. I suspect he only tried it to relieve the monotony of his daily life – at the time he didn't understand how powerful this Magic is.

Within ten days he soared from nothing to something, from poverty to luxury, and he's never looked back. A few days after working the Ritual, Ernst had an unusual dream. A man dressed in robes, surrounded by a glowing golden light, would walk up to him and hand him a lottery ticket, and say, "Take it, it's yours." He had the dream for seven consecutive nights.

On the morning of the eighth day, while he as out shopping for groceries, he found a lottery ticket in the street. Ernst was positive he would win something from the lottery, at least one of the smaller prizes. He simply could not believe it when his number was drawn for the big prize. He won over a half-million deutsche marks.

There was no looking back now. Everything Ernst touched turned to gold.

He now has money in his bank account, steadily increasing at the top interest rates in Germany, thank you. He travels the world, first class—on the best airplanes, luxury liners and super-trains. His wardrobe is filled with the latest, most stylish clothes. He wiped out all his debts, with one payment that got rid of them forever. He bought a big, expensive new apartment in the best part of town. His health is perfect, and every timest detail of his life has changed for the better.

CHAPTER ELEVEN: LET THE OLD JNES BRING YOUR DESIPES TO YOU

The details of the secret Spells and Rituals of the Old Ones, which have been given to you, are based on personal contact with this Elder Race. You now have your own personal program of magic working to bring perfection to every aspect of your life – easily, secretly and quickly.

But don't be in too much of a rush.

Here somewhere is the magic, simply expressed, which can transform you into a happy, powerful and harmonious individual. Apply that magic and see the results that can bring money, love and happiness flowing into your life in days, hours or even minutes.

Think of how your life is about to change, with the help of the Old Ones who are waiting for you to call them down from the unknown places between the Sphere.

The Let-Others-Notice-Me Spell Brought Josephine B. an Adoring Lover

Josephine B. is unlikely to win the local beauty contest in her hometown of Montreal, Canada. Average sized, bespectacled and with a pronounced stammer, Josephine has never been a girl to have the men lining up to greet her.

She had gotten used to staying in the background in the dating game. More beautiful girls, with bubbly personalities and attractive figures had no problems keeping her out of social affairs.

She had come to accept her lot in life, but she never liked it, and was desperately lonely.

Then magic came on the scene.

One bright su mer's day, Josephine's grandmother sat her down on the front porch of her house. "When all else fails, use a little magic," she said. "There are those who watch us from places we'd never dream of, and they can help us if we ask them with the proper words. If you want a man in the worst possible way, try this Spell."

She gave Josephine an old, musty book, showing her the simple Let-Others-Notice-Me Spell.

Josephine cast the Spell, and hoped.

The following weekend she was at a wedding reception for one of the few real friends she had in the world, when she was delighted to see that a particularly handsome young man was looking intently in her direction. He had at least a dozen beautiful girls clamoring for his attention, all with more to offer him than Josephine, yet he seemed to only have eyes for her.

Her heart skipped a beat when he stood up, walked over to her and asked her

for a dance. During the dance, her dream man suggested they have dinner the following evening.

Josephine stammered an acceptance, half-convinced it must all be a dream.

Josephine was in a state of ecstasy, and she stayed that way all through the night as they drove in his expensive British sports car to an exclusive club where they wined, dined and danced like newlyweds. But they hadn't even started. He took her back to his apartment at the top of a luxurious air-conditioned hi-rise in the fashionable heart of the city ... and invited her to stay the night.

Thus begun a candy-striped series of dates and excitement that left her in a haze of delight, and ecstatically limp. That was six months ago, but for Josephine it feels like six years of glorious happiness since she worked the Let-Others-Notice-Me Spell.

Josephine and her dream man are engaged now, and she still doesn't believe it's true – but it is.

WHAT DO YOU NEED TO MAKE YOU HAPPY?

Sit back a moment, and think about what it is you want most. A sackful of cash? A satisfying love life? To be glowing with health and vitality? The vanquishing of an annoying enemy? A general change of luck? The removal of obstacles that prevent you enjoying life to the full? All of those, or something else?

Then, when you are ready, glance through this book until you find the Spell or Ritual you need and work it to bring total happiness into your life.

The Ritual of Nyarlathotep Brought Frank O. Money and Fame

If you read occult-orientated self-help books, you've probably read one written by Frank O. (That's not his real name, he refused to have it revealed). A few days of work each week brings Frank O. thousands of dollars each month. His occupation is a pleasure not a pain, he loves doing it. And he has the Ritual of Nyarlathotep to thank for his new found financial freedom.

Frank might never have known he could write and make enough money to indulge himself if he hadn't called upon Nyarlathotep for guidance.

Not so long ago, Frank would have scoffed at the mere suggestion that spirits from other dimensions can help us achieve our desires. But he now knows that such forces do exist and are willing to help us if they are called in the right way.

Two years ago, Frank was a nobody. He worked long hours in a factory, with precious few prospects and little chance of seeing any changes until he retired on a small pension. He was always short of cash and lived in a third-floor walk-up in the wrong end of town.

In his spare time, he would spend hours browsing in the local library - it was

free, and provided a much-needed escape from his dull existence. He read books on every conceivable subject until his eyes nearly fell out.

During his reading, Frank discovered the Old Ones.

He found it interesting, and started studying the subject, but didn't want to get into it as a way of life. In one library book he found a method that used the Ritual of Nyarlathotep to discover hidden talents.

It was just what he was looking for as a means to escape his humdrum existence, so he spent a fascinating couple of evenings working the Ritual.

Frank wasn't too hopeful of any results, but went about it with an alert, open mind to see what inspiration would come his way, and found the making of a new life for himself.

Frank took to magical working like a duck to water, and the line of communication the Ritual opened up with the servitors of Nyarlathotep caused and endless flow of words to reach him, and form the beginning of a self-help book.

He grabbed a pen and a wad of blank paper, and as the words came to him, he wrote them down as fast as he could.

Within one month he had typed up a 60,000 word MS and mailed it to the publisher whose name he had received during the Ritual of Nyarlathotep.

In return, Frank received an enthusiastic letter from the publisher with a check that enabled him to be free of debt for the first time in his life, and a request that Frank would give him first option on all future manuscripts.

The following year saw Frank write another three books, one after the other, on various aspects of the occult world and how they could be used to better one's self.

He has become so prolific from his contact with the Old Ones in general, and Nyarlathotep in particular, that he now uses several different pen names and never his own.

Frank never had to return to his dull factory work again. The Ritual of Nyarlathotep gave him every pleasure and indulgence he had been lacking.

BE ALERT - MAGIC ALWAYS WORKS

Whenever magic is worked a result will always be obtained, though you may not be aware of it.

Let us say, for example, you wish to place a hex upon someone who has crossed you. You carry out the necessary requirements for the Spell to work, but after only one or two days you grow weary of it and stop.

Then, a few weeks later, you hear that the target of your hex has experienced a week of stress and emotional trauma.

Who is to say that this is not the result of the hex that, due to its working being cut short, has taken longer than usual to produce the desired effect?

The lesson here is to be alert to any and all things that happen after a Spell has

been cast or a Ritual worked. Record such things in your Personal Necronomicon for future reference.

The Deep Ones Helped Kevin N. Regain His Lost Virility

Kevin N., of Idaho, has a very satisfying love life now, thank you, but it wasn't always like that for him.

But things are going just fine now, ever since Kevin discovered the amazing recuperative Power of the Deep Ones and the Water-Heal-Me Spell.

He doesn't know how it works, and he doesn't care. He just knows it does, and he's glad of it.

Kevin was hopelessly impotent not so long ago. After an active life, at age 45 his ability to keep the ladies happy and fulfilled suddenly started to wane – and the ladies lost interest, real fast.

Doctors, psychologists, counselors and psychiatrists had tried in vain to find out why he was unable to get the slightest kind of arousal from his recent encounters with women.

He spent hundreds of dollars on products that promised instant potency, but no pills, herbal remedies, self-hypnosis or vitamins did him any good.

The solution to his problem came Kevin's way apparently by chance. He had been helping his neighbor, Frank O., move house after he (the neighbor) had suddenly struck it rich. Seems Frank had been inspired to write a series of self-help books explaining how anyone could call on powerful forces for secret information and help.

Royalties received from the sale of these books had enabled him to quit his job and move on to bigger and better things (see case history above).

Kevin had always been a little skeptical of such strange ideas but, in total despair, he confided his problem to him. Frank understood completely, and assured him that he wasn't the first person he'd been able to help in this way.

Kevin's neighbor suggested he call on the Deep Ones and try the Water-Heal-Me Spell, in conjunction with any medical recommendations of his doctor.

Kevin shrugged. What could he lose? He was willing to try anything after the failures he'd had. He felt a little of Frank's magic couldn't make things any worse than they already were – even if it did seem a little freaky, to say the least.

One month later, Frank O. received a letter from Kevin.

"How can I thank you?" he wrote. "I cast the Spell the day after we spoke. What can I say, except that it worked! Almost immediately, my body came to life as if I was a teenager again. Thank you! Thank you! Thank you!"

There was no need for him to thank his neighbor. It was the Deep Ones and the Water-Heal-Me Spell that deserved his gratitude.

If Kevin uses his newfound knowledge properly, I have no doubt that he will continue to receive all of the physical satisfaction and potency he desires.

HOW TO SPEAK DIRECTLY TO THE OLD ONES

In this book of Spells, Rituals, Invocations, Incantations and other magical lore I have given you ways and means of calling on the Old Ones to change your life in whatever way you desire.

The magical workings described in this book are the ideal actions taken under ideal conditions. But this method, involving as it does, Spells and Rituals, is not always feasible to use if the matter is an urgent one. In times of trouble, where help and guidance are needed on very short notice, what should you do?

Help from the Old Ones is always at hand. In such a moment, you need only the true emotion of deepest despair, for then the call comes from the soul, and it is to the soul that the Old Ones respond and give counsel.

Be it so.

MAKE CONTACT WITH YOUR SPIRIT GUIDES

Miracles Enter Your Life When Contact With Other Worldly Beings Made!

BE LED TO YOUR PERFECT SOUL MATE! RECEIVE YOUR HEART'S DESIRES! SOLVE LIFE'S MYSTERIES! TRAVEL THROUGH TIME! BECOME A MIRACLE WORKER! ENJOY HAPPINESS AND PEACE OF MIND! BE LED TO TREASURE AND RICHES!

You are at present living only at a fraction of your full potential!

Believe it or not you can release yourself from your present limitations, and enjoy happiness and fulfilment beyond your fondest imaginings!

This - and more - is possible when you follow Guided Pathworking: the liberating spiritual technique which lets powerful benefic beings from other spheres INTERVENE IN YOUR

Once these beings enter your life obstacles and bad luck fade away! Their presence is like a brilliant light which dissolves the darkness of despair, bringing warmth and hope!

To believe it you must experience it! Thousands of people today are practising Guided Pathworking to unlock their full potential, and enjoy the blessings of other-worldly contact!

With Guided Pathworking you receive absolute positive proof of the existence of other spheres of Being which can actually transform your fortunes completely!

Here is a true, real life story from the files of Dantallion, author of Guided Pathworking:

D.C., a 70-year old woman had everything she wanted. But tragedy struck when her grandson lost the use of his legs following a road accident. In Guided Pathworking she encountered an angelic looking child who showed her how to help her grandchild.

From that very day her grandson's condition improved until finally - to the doctors' amazement - he could walk again like a normal boy!

Who was the strange angelic child that appeared to this anxious woman? Parapsychologists postulate different explanations, but whatever the truth the fact is that her grandson, miraculously, could walk again!

No wonder our lives are troublefilled - we struggle day to day on our own efforts, entirely ignorant that close by are powerful spirit beings who can help us!

Just who these beings are remains disputed. Some say they are departed loved ones, others say they are guardian angels . . . still others say they are actual 'gods' from ancient civilizations. Others claim they are a person's own 'higher self', a manifestation of

one's own superconscious. Yet others declare that they are exterrestrials from other worlds.

Whatever they are, they appear from a world of consciousness normally denied to us. Guided Pathworking brings that world closer to us!

SHE FINDS HER TRUE LOVE!

M.G. had a pitiful series of liaisons with men who used her. She had despaired of ever finding the right man. Anguished and heart-broken she came to the author for help. In Guided Pathworking she encountered a beautiful young woman in a robe of white.

The experience of this beautiful entity changed her life and she soon found the man of her dreams! If you feel defeated; if life is becoming too much for you; if your health is deteriorating . . . then you need the soul-renewing experience of Guided

Art student J.G. felt life was becoming too much for him. His shyness made him feel isolated and there seemed little chance that he would pass his forthcoming exams.

His life was dramatically changed after an experience with Guided Pathworking. He found new friends, became engaged to a delightful young woman - and passed his exams!

Such true stories are typical of those who experience the power of Guided Pathworking.

Guided Pathworking creates the conditions which enable these super entities to contact you. They want to help you for it is not in the cosmic scheme of things that humans should struggle alone!

Through the wonder-working intervention of your Spirit Guide you can become a healer. You can also heal yourself. You can also experience the miraculous solution to your money worries!

Love . . . riches . . . enlightenment . . . bouyant good health . . . all can be yours when you gain success to this mighty beneficent power!

To receive 'Guided Pathworking: Making Contact With Your Spirit Guides by Dantallion send just £5. BRAND NEW BOOK REVEALS ANCIENT SECRET -

RECEIVE MONEY FASTER THAN YOU CAN SPEND IT!

- * CASH WHEN YOU NEED IT!
- ★ MONEY SEEMINGLY OUT OF THIN AIR!
- **★ WINNING STREAKS IN GAMBLING!**
- * RECEIVE GIFTS, JEWELS, AND OTHER LUXURIES!

Literally within seconds of opening this new book you will be able to perform the very rite that MAKES MONE. COME TO YOU FASTER THAN YOU CAN SPEND ITI

THIS IS NO GIMMICK, NOR A LUCKY CHARM, AND NOT A GET-RICH-QUICK SCHEME.

What you are shown in this book is 11,000 year old metaphysical secret which has worked over and over again for those few people who have known it!

Why is it that some lolk win at gambling whilst most others lose time and time again? What makes a few people lucky and most others not?

Why do some win lotteries, get the best jobs, have everything go their way, whilst others struggle week in week out all their lives just trying to make ends

If you think it's all down to a good education and hard work then you are most decidedly IVRONG!

Now - at last - you can become one of the lucky ones. You can see your debts wiped out before your very eyes. For once you can begin to LIVE!

But Isn't It plain crazy to think that money can actually be made to multiply itself? Sure, it's crazy - if you don't understand the principle involved! But with this book you are not being asked to believe a wild claim - you are only being asked to TEST AND SEE THE RESULTS FOR YOURSELF!

What you do is use this book's secret on a bank note (or dollar bill). Then no sooner will you have spent it the money will - astonishingly - reappear within hours, if not minutes! Of course it won't be the same bank note, but the very same amount of money - at least - will return to you! It may come back to you in a gambling win, or money in the mail, or even money given to you - as a gift from someone you know.

One woman used this secret on a \$100 bill at 9.00 a.m. By noon she had spent most of it and had \$9 left in change. But before she returned home at 3.30 p.m. she had \$108 in her purse!

So how did she manage to spend the best part of \$100, which is all she had when she left home, and yet return nome with \$108?

Well, the very first thing she used the \$100 bill for was a \$5 racing bet on which she had a very handsome

A London man, not a gambler, applied the same money-renewal

secret to a £10 note. He used it to buy cigarettes which left him with £8 in change. When he got home he found on his doormat an envelope containing exactly £10 - this was from a friend who had owed him this money for

These are simple examples of the money-renewal secret at work. BUT THOUSANDS OF POUNDS CAN BE MADE SIMPLY BY APPLYING THE SAME FORMULA TO PERSONAL CHEQUESI In this amazing book you will learn the metaphysical secret of making money that leaves you to return double, treble, and quadruple its original

You will also learn the secret of the amazing Atlantean Magic Money Jar which - within days - accumulates lots of cash before your very eyes!

This one formula is by itself worth 100 times the cost of this book!

Now, thanks to the information in this book you can have cash whenever you need it. . . receive unexpected gifts and luxuries. . . receive at least one dollar or pound - for every one spent, and

LOOK YOUNGER IMMEDIATELY!

This remarkable book not only shows you how to renew the very money you spend but also reveals how to metaphysically renew your body.

Just perform the very simple instructions in chapter five and no sooner will have you done them you will begin to feel younger! Performed on a regular basis you will feel your body continuously rejuvenated!

Jean W. (Chicago), aged 44, was anxious about her ever-increasing facial lines. When she tried this book's youthrenewal secret these lines actually decreased within a week!

Ben B. (Dallas), aged 60, felt old and fatigued. He felt a 'has been'. Within three days of using this secret he felt like a new man; within a month he felt completely rejuvenated in soul and

YOU HAVE TO TRY IT FOR YOUR-SELF TO BELIEVE IT!

INSTANT LOVE AND ADMIRATION OF ANOTHER PERSON!

The one who now ignores you could be literally begging for your company within days after using the instructions in chapter two!

You may think this far fetched but once you try it you will be astounded! Laura A. (Boston) couldn't get the man she loved to feel the same. Nothing she tried worked. She was disbelleving when she was told about the Atlantean Love-Attraction Rite, but felt she had nothing to lose by trying it.

Miraculously he fell in love with her!

HUSBAND BEGS FORGIVENESS! Lucy B. (Mobile) had pined for her husband a whole year. He was living with another woman. She tried lucky charms but to no avail. Three days after she tried these instructions he called and begged her forgiveness! They are now reunited!

Discover also in the thrilling pages of this book how to:

- Increase your power of sexual attrac-
- Possess sexual domination of another person!
- Make opposite sex obey your every
- Bring new friendships!
- Release your partner from sexual
- Make a seemingly frigid person wildly passionate!

You will find all this and much more in the brand new book 'THE ENERGIZED MONEY, LOVE & YOUTH SECRETS OF THE ATLANTEANS' which reveals for the very first time the secret techniques of the mystics of the lost civilization of Atlantis In this remarkable book you will read:

* How This Ancient Power Works Modern Miracles * Atlantean Secrets of Perfect Health * Magic Words That Materialize Money * How to Influence the Weather and Influence World Events with Atlantean Magic * How to Receive Messages From The Invisible Inhabitants of Astral Atlantis * How to Use The Mighty Power of Kintra to Receive A Fortune * How to Create an Atlantean Tarot De-ck * How to Gain Fast Relief From Pain. (Please note instructions in this book are safe and simple and do not involve hard-to-find occult materials).

To order your copy simply quote ENERGIZED MONEY, LOVE AND YOUTH SECRETS OF THE ATLAN-TEANS' along with payment of only €6.95.

£6.95(USA:\$14.99). Finbarr(BC), Folkestone CT20-2QQ(UK)

KEEPING IT SIMPLE

HOUSEHOLD MAGIC Within your home right now is everything you need for changing your luck forever ...

SIMPLE HOME RITUALS FOR WINNING IN LOVE & MONEY; FOR ATTRACTING SOMEONE OR MAKING THEM GO AWAY

Yes - within the privacy of your own home, and unknown to others, you can perform the simple but potent rituals which can change your fortunes forever.

YOU CAN CHANGE YOUR LUCK FOREVER BY PERFORM-ING IN YOUR KITCHEN OR BEDROOM SIMPLE RITUALS OF

POWERFUL MAGIC.

In their publication, 'HOUSEHOLD MAGIC', authors K. Richardson & W. Van - who between them have 50 years' worth of magical experience give the exact home rituals for:

ENDING LONELINESS

FINDING A PASSIONATE LOVER

BINDING A PERSON TO YOU

- MAKING SOMEONE CLOSER TO YOU
- GENTLY ENDING A RELATIONSHIP ENDING A RELATIONSHIP AT ALL COST
- KEEPING A LOVE AFFAIR SECRET

 FINDING SEXUAL OPPORTUNI-TIES

The rituals are simple. One ritual requires just a saucer and a glass of water. Another requires only scissors & matches.

You are shown the exact words & gestures to speak and procedures to follow that can bring the results you seek.

SOME OF THE RITUALS HERE HAVE EVER BEEN REVEALED BEFORE. They are the secret formulae of two life-long practising magicians.

RESULTS OCCUR WITHIN WEEKS ... SOMETIMES EVEN DAYS. You will be

HOUSE HOLD MAGIC CAN MATERIALISE THE MONEY OPPORTUNITIES YOU SEEK. With it you can find money: you are provided with the exact ritual to make this happen. Also here are the precise magic words and gestures for: making money always having a sufficient amount of money ... finding a job or getting a promotion ... receiving money from mysterious sources ... obtaining all kinds of material gain ... starting a new life and acquiring wealth.

It is easy for the sceptic to scoff, but the results can be astonishing!

HOUSEHOLD MAGIC WORKS AGAINST DIFFICULT PEOPLE! We have seen this magic at work. Sceptics may say that the results are 'coincidence', but you will know better! Yes, this magic will protect you against difficult neighbours. You are also shown the exact powerful ritual for forcing a difficult neighbour to move

And when someone is trying to make your life a misery you can use powerful

magic to deal with them.

And for the really difficult situations the authors reveal their 'attack' and 'revenge' rituals. If you have been badly wronged you can exact a price on the wrongdoer! But be careful - this magic can be more potent than you ever imagined possible! The authors show you the exact rituals for dealing with a lover who has wronged you ... dealing with a person who has cheated you ... taking revenge against an unfair colleague ... magically attacking a love rival ... magically attacking any given enemy.

And if you believe you are the target of a curse or psychic attack household magic

will protect you.

AND YOU CAN STOP PEOPLE MANIPU-LATING YOU: PUNISHING THEM IF NECESSARY!

All this can be accomplished in the privacy of your own home through powerful household magic, which is based on ancient formulae which have worked time and again for those who have used

Since we first published 'HOUSEHOLD MAGIC' the flow of testimonials that has been received confirm that:

- HOUSEHOLD MAGIC IS SIMPLE
- THE RITUALS ARE SAFE YET POWERFUL
- IN LOVE MATTERS THE TARGET CAN-NOT RESIST
- IT DEALS EFFECTIVELY WITH TROUBLE-SOME PEOPLE

IT ACTS QUICKLY

- OIT'S PROVEN: THE AUTHORS, AND MANY OTHERS, HAVE USED IT TO ACCOMPLISH THEIR ENDS
- IT PROTECTS AGAINST HEXES AND CURSES

Order 'Household Magic' today. You won't regret it. Please send only £6.95.

To receive HOUSEHOLD MAGIC please send £6.95 (USA: \$15.50) to: Finbarr(BC), Folkestone CT20 2QQ, England. address is complete).